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Milestomes of the 19805

1880

= Acquired porucns of 1 horn-EM|
medical equipment sales and services
operahon

= Opened new phenal plant in Mt Ver.
non. Ind. 1o supply plastic “osiness

— Revenues reached $26 8 billion, net
carnings were $1.51 bilhion

19881

— Exparded Bergen op Zoom plastics
plant in the Netherlands

= Acquired air poliution control busi-
ness from Envirotech Corporauon

= Introduced CT 9800 scanner for
medical diagnosuc maging.
1882

== Opened The GE Answer Center® an
award-winning 24-hour toll-free cus-
tomer service answering center

~— Dedicated $ 130 mullion ex nsion of
R&D Center in S¢ v.NY.

~ invested $300 million into automat-
ing locomotive business in Erie, Py

— Sold centrai air conditioning
business

1883

- ned new dishwasher plant in
?Aﬁfuvﬂk Ky, as first phf::of‘l bil-
hon investment in major apphiances.

~ Introduced Signa® Magnetc reso-
nance for diagnostic tmaging

— Expanded mortgage insurance busi-
nss by acquiring X:HC Corporation.

=== Common siock split two-for-one.
— Net eamings reached $2 billion for
first time.
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1884

~ Sald Uah International mining
operauons 1o BHP of Australia,

== Sold housewares business to Black &
Decker

= Acquired Emplovers Reinsurance
Corporauon

~— Sold Family Financial Services, a sec-
ond mongage subsidiary
~— Received 75% of U.S. Air Force con-

tract for new fighter engines in so-
called “Great Engine War "

~ Revised management structure to
ehminate sector level, Creaung a
ieaner, flatier, more market-driven
business structure.

=~ Shipped first Dash & computer-
controlied locomotives
== CFM International, the nt com-

pany of GE and SNECMA of France,
delivered its 1,000th aircrafy engine.

1as

= Acquired RCA Co. oration, includ-
ing the National P sadcasting
Company

= Acquired 80% of Kidder, Peabody
Group Inc.

~ Formed factory
ture with FANUC Lud. of Japan

- Statue of Liberty relighted by GE for
100th anniversary.

~ Opened $325 million plastics manu-
facturing facility in Burkville, Aly.

1987

= Acquired CGR medical
bucgmu from Thomson S.A. of
France in exchange for consumer
electronics business.

- Expanded financial service, business
by acquiring Navistar Financial Cor-
porauon Canada, Gelco Corporation
and D&K Financal Corp.

~ Selected by NASA 10 produce ma
portons of ws planned space sun".n?‘

== Common stock split two-for-one

automation joint ven-

S e e

1888

— expanded plastics busi S8 0y ACQuir- ,
ing lotgwlmuhchlnnh Y '.:%s,, ¥

= Expande., appliances business by
&cquinng Roper Corporation.

~ Acquired Monigomery Ward Credit
Corporation.

= Sold seiniconductor buiiness (o
Harns Corporation

—lmmudmxvcmuninmanvﬁh
Rohmlood\o(\ﬂqccnmy ko i AR

- Reverues $50 billion; net
earnings WP‘." $3 billion for first
ume.

1889
= Established joint ventures in a Fowk o
ances, power generation and ‘
cal equipment with GEC of the
Umudmnmgmm_
= Broadcasung record set by NBC with

68 consecutive weeks as top-rated TV

work.

net
—Aqudwaqum’ a majority interest
in unmm&mpanyj:?‘ ungary.
-—lepnﬂoﬁﬁnnahmnpumhm
program

—Formdmohkcmnmuniaﬁou' !
munwithb\’c-nnol&mdenm

= Awarded contract by Tokyo Electric
Powes Company for world's largest
combined-cycle power plant.

= Launched Work-Out effort in all GE

businesses 1o improve Com ¥
mwﬁdmhwlw



Geeneral Electric Company

Results of the 1980

eneral Electre Company and consolidated afvhates

Earnings Per Share Opoutmg Margm Market Vaiue
Averaged Y% annuai grouth mproved o [ ! 3% of sale Went from | 1A nd
$4.36 11.9% $55

billion
9.0

$1.66
$12
billion
1980 1989 1980 1989 1980 1989
Amencan companes
Dividends Per Share Total Cost Productivity Avange Annual Yield
Averaged 9 5§ annual growth VMore than tnpled (utperfor sed peer grout

$1.70

1.6%

19%0 1989 1980-81 1988.89 B S&P 400
[ BT

Lrowih rates adjusted to exclude 8 Dow Jones Indoseria AveTage

mfator
With dividend reinvestmen
ASsumMed
Financual Fighlights
S o)
} i
lkbih'un »wmnw!uhu-u per-share amounts i dollars 19589 1988 Increass

Rc venues S’H $50,084 9
Net earnings 3.939 3,386 16
Dividends declared 1,537 1,314 17
Per share

Net earnings 4.36 3 75 16
Ulsukn«lwiuh ed 1.70 | .4 | €

I m.(dnn average \hm Owners equity 20.0% 19



Nineteen eighty-nine was anol. er excellent year tor Geeneral Ele

a ret VEAT 1IN a Aecad i & leraung performance. We begin the
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more rapidly than the i Conoimie wihich we opx«
t
We begin the 1990s with a Company vastly ditterent from the org
i existed 1t ed ’it\ [N
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Core manutacturning arngt no

S ey HASH SN U Nd I
resd es. Today, two-thirds of
O reve o8 i fro 4

growt teCnnoiogn ANl SEeTVIC e

USINESSEs, O WO were tn
global — GE Plastics and GE An
craft Engines. We begin the

1 990s with a signthcant globa

presence in virtually al

businesses. Our operaung profits
from outside the Unuted States
AT Si £
2 1N
|
amounted to 4( of the («

nd Cheef Execulrve wntothe US !)JL\I‘.«('H(”.L‘\' 1 s‘ R bithon in 198

{ Who oy r F Welcl v Inweh 14 } v } -
n F. Wei WAL Vs bu''on in 1988 and $2.1 billion in 198
hu ”m < .‘ Mivd ang Lxe '
pov . uly (cer 8 We began the 1980s with a bureaucracy of as many as nine mat
Vi 3Mar he Board and Execu agement lavers in some businesses. Today, all our businesses have signit
Py LAUATa L. 100 " wcantly reduced lavers, some 1o as tew as four, and now we move a lo
taster — not vet with the speed of the best small companies but witl

that goal always in our sights and closer everv d

{

8 Our productivity growth in the early 19805 was representauve o

nited States in the range ot 1 vear. We enter the 1990s

approaching the t leve

® Earmnings grew for 40 consecutive guarters in the 1980s. As the

decade | ogressed, this growth chimbed from high single digits to co
sistent double digits, and we hinished the decade with a strong 1989
earnings of $3.9 billion, up 1€ trom 1988, and 2.6 umes the 1980
level. Operating margins are at histonic highs: revenues, at $54.6 bil



® The stock marl - looked favorably on these moves and changes
and the performance they produced. In 1980, we had a total market
value of $12 billion, which ranked us | 1th among Amencan compa-
nies. We left the decade ranked second, with a year-end market value of
$58 billion, and that $46 billion increase during the 1980s was the
largest of any company in the United States,

In sum, it was a great decade for GE. We are proud of what we did well
and smanter for some of the things we didn't do so well. Not every new
acquusition worked, although $16 bilhion out of the $17 billion we spent
on acquisitions will add to 19%)s earnings. Not every new product was
right — as the refrigerator compressor failure demonstrated. And we
discovered in mid-decade that we needed to upgrade substantially our
systems for complving with government procurement laws,

And finally, as bold and transformauonal as we think we have been
— as we acquired, sold, restructured and reorganized — # 1s clear in
hindsight that we could have been faster, bolder and less incremental.
We will be all of these in the years ahead.

But before we take that look ahead, we would like to share a few
thoughts about the type of enterpnise vour Company has become.

People sometmes grapple with what to call GE. An erectrical equip-
ment manufactirer? Sure. But that descripuion ignores two-thirds of
our ¢amings.

Are we a conglomerate? No, not that there's anything wrong with
being a conglomerate. We simply aren't one. We're not a collection of
stand-alone enterprises, and this label misses the very essence of what
makes this Company work so well.

We know what we are: an integrated, diversified company. And we'd
like to explain what that means and, more important, why we think it
posiuons us umquely to take on the challenges of the 1990s.

We entered the 1980s with a widely diverse set of businesses and
major product lines — as many as 350 - that we subjected 1o a strategic
test. Diversity, we felt, could only be a real strenguh if each business was
number one or number two in its particular market. For those that
were not, we had a very specific prescription — they were to be fixed,
sold or closed.

In line with this simple strategy, we sold businesses that macle up 25%
of our 1980 sales, inclue 1 natural resources, consumer electronics,
housewares and scores of others that could not become number one or
number two. Duning the same perxd, we invested $17 billion in acqui-
sitions — NBC as a free-standing busiress; the Aerospace business of
RCA added 1o GE Aerospace; Borg-Wamer Chemicals added to GE
Plastics; Employers Remnsurance, Montgomery Ward Credit and Kid-
der, Peabody as well as many others added to GE Financial Services; the
French medical equipment company, CGR, added to GE Medical Sys-
tems; and, most recently, Tungsram of Hungary added to GE Lighting
— Just to name a few. We committed the research and development and
plant and equipment investment necessary to keep our current busi-
nesses in leading positions, and we undertook the initatives to ensure
that these businesses became global in their scope and reach.

We enter the 1990s with 13 businesses, each number one or number
two in the global markets in which they compete, each with strong

® In 1980, we had a total mar-
ket value of $12 billion, which
ranked us 1 1th among Ameri-
can companies. We left the
decade ranked second, with a
year-end market value of $58
billion, and that $46 billion
increase during the 19505
was the largest of any com-

pany in the United States.
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The effect of this constant sharing of commaon ma.agement issues s
a reinforcement in the minds of all of the need for speed, continuous
expenmentation and action

We've seen, as we sbed our bureaucracy and created this integrated
diverse enterprise, t'e enormous benefits of sharing best practices, of
helping each other, of asking questions and, above all, of sieming In
the 19805, these practices tended 1o cucentrate in the upper levels of
the Company. We are now committed 10 a decadeaong campaign to
drive them throughout the enterprise.

Our dream for the 19905 is a boundary-less ompany, 4 Comparny where
we knock dowt the waiis that separate us from each other on the inside
and from our key consttuencies on the outside.

The boundary-less Compaty we envision will remose the barmers
among engineering, manulacturing, marketng, sales and customer
service; it will recognize no distinctions be aeen “domestic” and “for-
eign” operations - we'll be as comfor able doing business in Budapes:
and Seoul as we are in Louisy e and Schenectady. A boundary-less
orranization will ignore or eras group labels such as “management,”
“salaried” or “hourly,” which get in the way of people working together

A boundary-les Company will level its external walls as well, reaching
out to key suppliers to make them part of a singie process in which they
and we joir hands and intellects in a - ammon purpose — satisfving
customers.

This s an admittedly grand vision, requiring unprecedented cultural
change, and we are nowhere near achievii | it But we have an idea of
how to ge there - an dea that is rapidly becoming reality across the
Company. It's called Work-Out.

Work-Out is o flusd and adeptable concept, not a . ogram.” It generally
starts as a series of regularly scheduled “town meeungs” that bring
together large cross secuons of a business — people from manufactur-
ing, evgineering, customer service, hourly, salanied, high and lower lev-
els — people who in their normai routines work within the boxes on
their orgamzation charts and have few dealings with one another.

The initial purpose of these meet.ngs is simple — to remove the
more egregious manifestations of bureaucracy: muluple approvals,
unnecessary paperwork, excessive reports, routines, rituals ldeas and
opinions are often, at hirst, voiced hesitantly by people who never
before had a forum — other than the water cooler — 1o express them.
We have found that aiter a short tune those ideas begir 1o come in a
torrent — especially when people see action taken on the ones already
advanced.

With the desk largely cleared of bureaucratic impediments and dis-
tractions, the Work-Out sessions then begin to focus on the mor * hal-
lenging tasks: examining the myriad processes that make up every
business, identfying the cruaal ones, discarding the rest, and the - ind-
ing a faster, simpler, better way of deing things. Next, the teams raise
the bar o excellence by tesung their improved processes against the
very best from around the Company and from the best companies
around the world,

8 While our seemngly dive.
businesses range from a televi.
sion network to financial serv-
ices, from, plastics to jet
engines, there is a unique
cutamon thrcaa - shared
management practices — that
binds them together and cre-
ates what we call integrated

diversity.



8 Our dream for the 19905 i« a
boundary-less Company, a
Compary where we hnock
doon the walls that separate
us fram each other on the
inside and from our key con-

stituencies on the outside.

We have progressed well into the first stage of Work-Out i most of
our businesses, and some are beginning the transition into the secord
~ or best-practices — phase: but we are under no illusions that this i
anvthing less than a decade-long ausade. We have hardly scratched the
surface of the enormous mine of productvity and innovation that we
ko exists in the intelligence and imagination of our 300,000 employ-
ves, but we are excited bevond measure by what we are discoverning.
The natural cviicism that accompanies the announcement of new cor-
porate campaigns and slogans has largely been dissipated as progress
and momentum have begun to grow. 'Vork-Out s workin g

The hardware of this Company — its businesses and its management
structure — is now largely the way we want it. Work-Out is our decade-
long vehicle for the software. Restructuring is o road, not a destination
/v company can boost productivity by restructuring, removing bureauc-
racy and downsizing, but it cannot sustam high producuvity growth
without cultural change, without totally involving the individual who is
closest to the work and therefore knows it better than those who “man-
age” it The individual is the fountainhead of creatvity © - 1 innovation,
an | we are strugghng to get all our people to accept -+ ountercultury’
truth that often the best way 1o manage people is just to get ou’ of thewr
way. Only by releasing the energy and fire of our emplovees can we
achieve the deasive. conuruous productivity advantages that will give
us the freedom o compete . d win in any business anywhere on the
globe.

We end this decade with enormous confidence 11 the future of GE Last
November, we announced ou intent to repurchase $10 billion worth
of our stack over the next five vears. This decision was made poss ble by
our earnings and our debt capacity and by the significant cash flows
generated by our business restructurings and oroductivity growth dur-
ing the 19805,

The repurchase in. no way impinges on investment in the Company.
R&D investr - _nt s the highest in our history, as are capital expendi-
tures. The bas nesses, even duning the repurchase period, will be given
the resources 1o make modest-size complementary acquisitions, and
should a very lirge acquisivion opportunity surface, we have Loe flexi-
bility to suspend the repurchase program and move decisi ely.

Our Company will be making exciung business moves in the 1990s
~= ventures, new product lines, acquisitions, alliances — but the most
important campaign will be the daily one we wa *e 10 inspire and enlist
our emplovees in the cause of shared excellence and winning.

In the 1980s, we changed the Company. We also challenged the
bureaucracy and generally got the better of it. 'n the 19695, our task
will be 10 chal'enge each oth v and, in doing so, to get the very best out
of ourselves. The cool efficiency that many have always associated with
business leadership must give vay to personal skills and traits like
empowening, listening, passion, er..rgy an the capacity to transmit
that energy to others. Being “on top « " things,"” controlling them, must
give way to sharing, trusting. Most of the bureaucracy that infects busi-
ness institutions — the reviews, layers, routines and reports — stems
largely from a lack of trust. We have sec 1, with the demolition ot the
control superstructure w. once imposed on our business, and we are
begmnmg 10 ee ever oo clearly as Work-Out starts o blossom, that



controlling people doesn't otivate them. 1t siifles them. We've found
that peaple perform better, even beroically «hen they see that what
they do every dav makes a ditference

When they see that — when Loy are allowed to make real conribu-
tons to win = they quickly develop increased self-conpdence That self-
confidence in turn promotes smmplicty — of action, of design, of proc-
ess, of communicatian — because there is no longer a psvchic need o
wrap oneself in the complexity, trappings and jargon that, in a bureanc-
racy, signify sophustication and status. And that cmplicity will radically
increase the speed of our businesses and the e @ity 1o react to a world
whose pace of change will beccr astonisiosg in the 19905, Speed,
simplicity and selfconhdence wili be the operative charactenistics of the
winning companies of the 1990s and bevond.

We want GE to become a company where people come 1o work every day
in a rush to try something they woke up thinking about the night
before. We want them to go home fr -+ work wanting t talk abour
what they did that day, rather than t , g 1o forget about it. We want
factories where the whiste blows and evervone wonders where the ume
went, and someone suddenly wonders aloud why we need a whistle. We
want a company where people find a better way, every day, of doing
things; and where by shaping their own work expenence, they make
their lives better and vour Company best

Far-fetched? Fuzzy? Soft? Naive? Not a bit. This is the type of liber-
ated, involved, excited, boundary-less culture that is present in success-
ful siant-up enterprises. It is unheard of in an institution our size; tut
we want it, and we are determined we will have it

John E Weich, Jr.
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Ofhcer

Mﬁng{\

Vice Chairman of the Board and
Executive Offhcer

£<

Edward E. Hood, Jr.
Vice Chairman of the Board and
Executive Officer

February 16, 1990
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® Throurh cur capital rescurces GE Financval Services had another outstonding year 25 carmings
} 1€ . INL) 1IN !
and inancial cxpertise, us vear 1t also made signihicant thrusts in new and existing markets and
PO LSO STEONEIY ON CUSsOIEeT SCrvice
ar )I'I['l'l‘ (o fuel bustness (F -““I"“ "’l""'“ i, with 21 of the . y G E Financial Services
DILISET MO NSES |'m'.s"”-|!l. M) ASSELS ontinued expand indd innovate
wpressively i domeste markets. At the same ume. @ number of 1

HNPOReNts est iblished o extended sucoe -11121';" rations abroad

Y (Wesdi ToT Y Iy 'whs‘u G Capital used the expertise gained in the sale and
= e _,-‘."_,I‘.v..y,“!l by ‘.111.;.,.5||A“ ‘.,'|t|<.‘;|'! IR l:.’-:"-.lhllul;‘
iereasingly, of the “,"U ers and ACCLIISITIONS market ltluv;nin nt easing O rabons also moved
thead there wath transacuons including traders for a leadimg trailer
Pe— renta w'.'ll‘ml \ Albli hia 'lHu (4-1.‘ 1O 4 man Automotive ---']i,vﬂ‘ "TILS
manufacturer. GE ( apitals real estate hnancing business made new
investments totaling $200 mubion in the United Kingdom and financed
its hirst othce buddings in France

The US leader in third-party private-label credit cards, GE Capital
serves retalers and manufacturers in the department store, consuine:
durable and specalty retailing sectors. During the vear, it acquired sig
J ’ j A nihcant new credit card portfobios and introduced a major retailer

prvviie dab | ey, At card programs finanee athhated Visa Card program for Armes lk'}l.nmn'llv Stores

GE Capual also is the nation’s largest equipment lessor. Major invest

ments are in trucks and cars, aircraft, railcars, ocean shippirg con

tamners, temporary buildings, cornputers and industrial equipment. In
198%, 1t expanded this leadershin by increasing the worldwide
fleet of commeraal and corporate aircraft - leases to more than
327 arrcralt. Overall, the equipment leasing operations made
healthy gaimns in 19849

GE Capital also teamed up with several GE businesses to bring
cost-eftecuve financing 1o their customers and suppliers. Areas

Ayt

.. of synergy included plasucs, appliances, aircraft engines

locomotives and medical systems
In hnanaal guarantee insurance, GE Capital com
pleted its acquisition of FGiC Corporaton. 16 mon
gage insurance, it used its expertise and market
leadership to expand innovative programs for home
ownership among the disadvantaged. Cne program
helps to provide affordable housing for low- and moder-
ate-income famibes across the nation
Despite a very difficult year in the insurance industry
i lnplu\(‘l\ Remnsurance ( AOrporation H‘lp!n\(‘ii carmings
over 19885 record level while experiencing a shight decline
in net written premiums. This GEFS subsidiary also retained its posi-
uon as the navon's second largest, and the world's fourth largest, prop
erty and casualty reinsurer
Kidder, Peabody completed a strategic review of its four major activi
ties — investment banking, securities sales and trading, retail sales and
asset management — 1o hetter position iself for the 1990s. As a re ‘ult
sieps were taken 1o exit centain operations, to upgrade staff in others
such as mvestment banking, and to streamline the organization



Plastics

B Yeare GE Plastics inished out the decade witl series of deve ) !
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naArket & Plastics extended Mmarket e tra
won by winning key orders from Cadillac for 1y
fenders of Norvl GTXE resin for t} ING/ 1 9N)
Deville and Fleetwooxd models. from Hyvundas t
the Sonata L.umper beam and tasca. and tron
Honda for the comnposite bumper bears ot the
Accord. The Llator housing in the GM Lorve
also 18 made of GE polymers

In the pa kaging industry, GE Plast Mro
‘%th("(s new niin ‘r':"‘ } “w.‘\ Nat allows s

IMICTOWave OKINnE tor trozen !
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introduced the Eurobottle ™ reusable Hottle
carbonated drinks. 1t s made of Lexan® resin an
(el NIZH-DAIMIer NVION, 4 New matena

The new Lavmg Enveronmends concepd howse In the building a1 d construction markets, GE enjoved considerable

m Putsfield, Mass., showcases the wes of GF sales growth in 1989 — a year highlighted by the debut of the Living
Pt "¢ I§ GRA CORIEFUCHION l11'_[!511[1]"|_|U\x1|l|4!"!l house. The house showcases current and futu
markel
,;'I auons of engineering ;P"v"h rs in the builadn ¥ oant« sLruction
industnes. Several products already are commerca:  ed, including the
house siding ied with Gelov® resin and WICT ERTCR
taining Valox® resin. GE Plastics 1s working in partnersl P witt It
han 50 ‘-'H("l..‘m\l'u" vel ‘;«J‘Fl“ wnal systems andd components
Yet another innovatuoa came trom GE Sthicork Wl h deve ned
new polyinet tor the hair care market that HOWS Shamipbxox arnd il
tnoner 12 be combined into one product
Another key devel pment was the growth ol Polvmeriand, a wholly
owned subsidiary involved in the collection, renewal andd distributior
recyciabie plastics as well as the dastriibunon of mnoctity and eng
neering polymers. Polymerland acquired a new manutacturing facl

and two distributors LNl
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Alcraft Engines

Aln f every A seconds of

erery day. a commerciaal atr

rajt powered by G4 frpging

ES vory su-ce F6-80C.2 enpy
he A v e selecied Tor alm
Ta ridunde, mcludmg the new |
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GE Awreralt Engines had record revenues and earnimgs 11 19%9 4
invest heavily in resecarch and devel PInent prograt a ted) at
{ hese programs, 1 ng at § i | ) proceeded a
It I pade o p e CoF with the techinology adva (S ha
have tributed to its remarkabl ; VO } .
| he | ] N DUSIHTH 1O exal ‘m cOon TRt In
o Firm orders {or comumes HONENes wint } s‘ Dt were
announced during the vear o whng GE's share of orders placed witl
CFM I Hermational, a ount « npa o () i SNECMA of France
Airhines such as Amencan and USAur, as well as the tast-growing leasing
vrrn"’.ﬂx:-.\.l'\l."-;;~ll|f and Internatus |l ease Fiut ince Corpora

ton, announced large orders for GE CEO-80C2 or CFMH6 engines i

advance of specithic ance it selecuons

. Also duniig the vear, the CFO-BOCT engiin
- went into service aon the new Boemg 747400 for
- ’ airlines such as Latthansa, KLM and Malavsia andd
d was installed on the new McDaor nell Douglas MD-11

trijet. 1ts most successtul predecessor, the CFG-50, reached the mayor
midestone of 50 milhon hours of operation. Large orders by Contunenta
and Aur Inter launched the higher-thrust CFO-80E | engine being devel
oped tor the new Airb s Industrnie A330 and other widebody aircraft

Small commeraal engine sales also did well, led by an order for 1K
GE O Topowered Saab 340 regional awrcrafi placed by Amencan Eagle
In addivon, Canadair announced plans for a new 50-passenges

regional jet 1o be equinped with CF34 engines

The development of advanced commercial power plants {or the future is
a top priorty GE recently announcesd plans tor the ( ), & new gener
auon of large commercial engines that will hav thrust levels up to
95,000 pounds for powering bigger, twin-engined widebody jets. Work
also 1s conunuing on the GES6, better known as the UDF® engine, 1o
I ave it ready when airlines requn e it, Current estimates are that the
program v il not go into production before the late 19905

GE's strength in military markets was greatly enhanced as a resul’ of
signithcant developmnts throughout 1989 The big news was the U.S
Navy’s return of all F404 Aghter engine business to GE after four vears
of sput production with a competitor. GE's F404 also was selected by
South Korea to power its new F/A-18 fighters. The US. Air Force's
annual buy of fighter engines resulted in about 85% of the single
engine F-16 fighters being powered by the increased-performance ver
sion of GE's F110 engine, which also flew for the first tume in an F-1 7
aircralt. The B-2 bomber, powered by GE F118 engines, began fight
wesung. The ground test program of the F120, GE's candidate for the
Air Force's Advanced Tactical Fighter, attained several major milc
stones. The T407 wurboprop engine, 1o be co-produced by GF and
seve ral other companies, was selected by the US. Navy for its new P-7A
patiol aircraft. And anuther major contract was signed with the Air
Force for 182 more F108 engines to power KC-135R tankers

Marine and industrial engine sales also were on the upswing. Avia
ton service had outstanding sales, too, reflecting greater efficiency in
engine overhaul and component re pair as well as increased numbers of

GE-powered aircrafi



/ I\’/i!"!.’;\'

B Buddmg om owr legocy of

¢ are constantly improving

the efhoiency, guality and use

o our (ghaling product

betny . horie / he

wrk Ri, ar i \
wamp 1oay bel S

mfrare M m g habe (A

GE Laghting further enhanced s leadership

|
) !
A
ETTH [n ; )
s w of '
M H t | !
' .v,vn‘-l,}|~t'~‘ [.¥ { } '
facture and s« 1»“-‘. ! 4 g1 ! of
g Huorescent proviucts gt e hit {
port of GE Lighung's ¢
AN f [ !
tormmed o et e wi
prociuce Huorescent la
il Asia-Paail 1kt
I Tane bt
armed at the N TOV N A

ward ! ge ighung ¢
ers more 1reeciom reale ¢
end designs 1or tomon W
Also pro Vil long lile t
for motornists. Commuitne
Th Ve reacty bee recenn
i e iUl nohies !
A her tecnnolog f
n of new Halogen-I1R™ Houdhigh
ired retiective Wing i e the
Jaakle ey and v er D¢ ol 4
et WY provides the ight of a 1 50w
v DU WALES O 2120ty

Other 1989 haghiights included the reopening

Laghung it tute 1in Cleveland, il fier an exite
Lhatl strengt acned Its year reputall as the ind
ng r. Fach vear more tha UL MIETS
i { ne Jionx r"”' Dale  ‘nstitute
fer strate GE'S expertse A g Tesign

GFE Lig hich ol ) el £ (W) i
) i \( OnsSuImer. Incaustria W W A
gnim } wiu i IPIOVENN Y !
ve deas trom peopie t wgh ot the bu S |
1O €x4 e, involved R emplovees wh ih

{
5
b hy
‘N
}
}
)
!
!
9!
N
\ )

W
Ve
SUIN
Wit
‘Hi



med 4 " MY '
LT | opr it

’ 4 ' '
freal dsea

I ey ne I noependen
dis piay bogr ' MK mage
ou Y WaARIng o raaer Jor phy
fx diag ’ T

Gk Med>

x‘\\\’l‘”l""\’l(l'ln wd earnings I» sales 1
)
5 { " ( ¥l ) b ;“ v ! Wl Clid gy ’
y 5 I8 i ! ey |
g ¥ ! ) ! i e ) | pa )
| ) I § ¥ } LR ' gt v
SUrengu 5 | » » At oAk L |
Y " " ) N the Stet wop i1 ™ ! i
) ! L ! o Mot ! Hal)
o | | Lt u'l|’bv LA ) UX M I A-Tay s i
0 Ly ¢ as GBS base for supplving the dig ANEOogTrapty
! ) ! hogranhs Kin ' aell I mam .;Lv‘”.).
ra eOf i SCrVe two-thad { the world x-rav market. GF als
RS ( ol nedical eguipin SAles andd serviee a s 1N Lhe
L 3 yaomn | "INY
In the Far East, GE Medical Systems—Asi mtnued strengther
IS market positus thi -,'N W the regiuot GES ) owned Jananes
) { re, Yokogawa Medical Syvsien pened a new headqguanet
and manufacturing faclity near Tokvo, New C1 produ included the
Svie SO and C1 Pace ™ P 18 SVsie'm the K GNUE) COlOor<Tow ultra

SOUN SCAnDer also was unvelled

Meanwhile

remains the

in the United States, GE Medical Svstems— Americas

werall market leader, It has particular strencth in

Advantx ™" x-ray svstems, mabte x-ray units and premium C1 and MR
products, all de agned for wor @ markets. lis MR magnet plant in Sout!
Carohna the industry's largest produ l\k"lllwx“.'| UNg mag

th the Sign ,|,' and \!}«' Max ™ svs

base. GGF s su

ms. From this solid equip
cesstully pursuing other opportunities. The
Maxi-2000™ finar

INNOVative \al package, for example, provides

;,‘.L‘y,,‘jv IpUOns, protection agamst downtine and markeung supporn
Mayor ')n--! Wt introductions included

MR systen

[.‘A, it the vear

Lhit ‘..‘\,“ el St
I Hilight Advantage

N POSILY nedd isel! 1o e

\:Hdh‘,qyt -
and the iInovauve { systen
ome a world leader in the

(PE]

Scanditronix AB of Sweden under which GE acguired

emerging area of positrun emission tomograg? It formed an
alllance witl
that hirm’s PET scanner business. 1t also entered into a yoint deve lop
ment agreement with Hamamatsu Photonics of iz}t.lh mnvulving ‘I)fr‘
detection devices for use in FET scanners
Driven by efforts to control health care costs, the worldwide market fo
diagnosti HIMAEng equipment is e \P"'“"' Lo grow raore siowly in com
ing vears. 1o win in this constrained eavironment, GE is i« reasing is
en }-?u\r-wt marsetl responsiveness and « ustomer saustacuon

several moves were implemented in 1989 (o support this thrust. An
Advanced Technology Division was cre ied to explore new areas of
tech.nology and quantum advances in existing product lines. US. prod

I"( il

ane' service

gineering was combined with marketing to assure

match of products and services to customer needs. Sales

" 1
OIganmzatons were re "'L:H!t‘. i \'IHII,_ SENIOT Management Closer 1o cus

tomers. In addivon, the new InSite ™ svstem decreases equipmen’

downume, minmmizing patent inconvenience, arxd a new system intro

d Electric CGR will

re thiant M linica

duced by Gener JSSISLIN Managing service opera

mns arm | sites in Europs
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GE Industrmal and Power Systems enpoved a successiul vear

req FEmMents ecome more civerse arx Omixeuno nereases. Gl

t

Orohou
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s building industry, thereby reducing gvi



A\ppliances

W Weare "“aders in providing
consumers with the latest

styles and features in major

appiwances for the home

GE s new "Whae on uhiie

reales a woft. sobha

GE Appliances accelerated efforts during the year 10 position itsell

ol

} ok . A }
fir ) g hie ¢ b rever -§ i i

\ ) I a wicke VING agreene with (I | the | | Y
ll m. (il “,L it tnlereq ) o | "P 1 i‘l '

| HYTt t vOURIN i )

| giobal has Already 1l LS irket leader " 18] "
Nnas e I nUmMber two positio! cdwide through the GF GE
pant venture tormed i mad =4

Alsowithal xusonthet

iture, GE Appliances continue
improvement etforts. A maiot P was the ant inced
date electric range production into two Sange plants. ¢l
'n addivon progress was made toward resolving e

during 1988 in cerain refrigerator compressors

On the domestic tront, the 1984

RCA major lL'|'§lH|:l\‘y' wided retatle s with a
new, distinctively \'»t!ll?'lf“-l-liww e Hearing
one of Amenca’s most trusted brand name

Launched in Fes POnNSe o hwgh d

high dealer interest, the

brand also is heid in high esteem by consuniers
who see it as innovative and forward-thinking
I'he RCA line includes 69 different

ing cach major ;-.'«-‘,‘v"‘;'ek'r ry. Its stvlng s con

temporary, featuring a high-tech, electronic look

To serve the appliance market more broadly, (,1

embarked on a new brand distrib.at

ALROT SLFdt ey

With consumer buving patterns making the nation

al chains and Superstores  a growit gment. Gl
Appliances has incved 10 ircrease its ¢ XPOSUTE 1n
those channels. All of its authorized retasil de ters
are now ygiven the opportunity to |
more of GE sstrong apphance byand names — G#
RCA and Monogram

AVE TWO

Hotpomt
on thewr Hoors

ihe GE brand saw a major introducuion | 189 — a new “White on
white" line of apphiances that provides homeow ers a

designer look
without man

of the costs associated with o more expensive buitlt-in
kitchen, All models in the line are white with white control pang

subtle gray graphics. Most handles and other parts, which tradit ’

wcitionally
were chrome woodgrain or a darker neutral color, are white

I he Hotpoin. hine of appliances, known for reliabilicy aned durabitits

has been enhanced with the introdud ton of s

and

st sohd sk range and
tull-featured electronic dishwasher
I'he Monogram brand, the first in the indus:r | ffer I
ine of apphances designed for the high-end s gment, continued
expansion with the addition of four new cooktops. Three vears ald i
1989, the Monogram line enjoys a double dignt market shiare thie

tigh-end segment of the industry

Inncvation carries byond product lines at GF Appliances. Benehits suct

das [.’”‘v' \"\\sz( 'l-?'lk\t"»l-r t SLate nf{’.! an - f ( CUStonuwr
assistance number (800-626-2000 ;. and GF ( onsumer Service, a na
uonwide tactory service network, contin 1€ 10 set tne indus anclared
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B W are developing the (4 Aerospace took aggressive astion nt iwadershig Live!
N v
advanced technologie ing T e d Hiark (rders | he v )6t
s. 5 211 |
i
reg re for the exploratl ’ eSO [ | d y ’ "
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¢ ! a ¢ F ) e 0 v . ! )
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maj el { e FInecring " Wit NerTe )
ated during the vea
GF Aerospace als expanded s business base UKy}
winning several important competuuons 1The new pro

grams include the US. Army's Tacucal Command and (e

trol Svstem (ATCCS ), the ULS Aur Force's next generation of

U Navstar giobal posinoning satellites and Migh mitrols |
the C-17 transpon aircraft
Orrders trom international customers and technology licensing
foreign parners amounted Lo nearh $ | bilbon, more than double tha
of the vear betore. Major contracts from overseas wers received for

comm ‘nicauons satellites, surveillance radars and Hight simulators

rfw Al 4 ’ ) :
’ b diverse ling of programs ranges from satellites and rac . ran
A "
iomiihc instruments for stuthing the detense systems o undersea combat systems and sonars. Products als
ne layer and aitmaospheric conditirs include mulitary data svstems, visual simulation systems, armament sys

tems, transmussions and turret stabilization systems
tor tracked vehicles, hre control and guidance svs
tems, automated test systems, aircratt electronics

and communicatons systems

Highlights for the yeer included the commissioning
and entry into the feet of Hur US Navy cruisers
cw.ix;»pui with the GE-ueve loped Aegns teet an
detense svstem. Three more were chnstened. In
addition, the first of the Navy'’s new Aegis destroy
ers, the Arieyh Burke, was christened. More than 20
Aegns systems also were in vanous stages of produ
tion dunng the year

I space exploration, a GE-built heat shield s
traveling through the solar svstem on the Galileo
;mbf! Lo protect that Space raft when it enters the

atmosphere of the planet Jupiter. Also in 1989, pr

gram activity was expanded on NASA's space sta
uon project in which GE has responsibility for design and de.elopment
of the polar platform and attached pavload accommaodations and for
engineening of the servicing facility system

Production continued on DSCS 111, the third generation of defernse
commumcauon satellites jor the US. Air Force. In-orbit performance
of DSCS satelhites launched O daie has been outstancling

GE Aerospace also was selected by AT& T 1o build three satellites that
will replace its current Telstars. Dual-oand Telstar 4 satellites will be

bl Iwier .!S, _"‘i"r.!iiv‘!.‘v:’ﬂ"»! 'A(hi iJ 1N }t'zfz' the 1':)! 18N )



C.ommunications ana Services

8 Wi help customers take advan

A new ransachion exchange syitewm carmied

ner (8 Informatuom Servvcey worldude

leleprocessng network 1 wed vy the PR L,
(1es dealers &' Jume apel and viker Ewr
pean 1= vestmen! howies to re ¢ the ruk

o trading Euroivmds ™= lelephone

GE Communications and Services had mereased revenues in 1URY | he
| Tl | " | | | gt
t | » P WLy bhiase ¢ { ! t
A 1 TIW AT 1l \ |
1 { WKAUNg v rdawide t il ela CIreTyy ' Xirta
| neases. s Cadobal | - ¢ * lor ex ¢ ) {e i
§ ' ih o " {ata X { {
rad A, | TR
(:F Ametr { n N s, whach Leos & ¢ it
Lo ¢ TR ! alil W oSalt ¢ irlustry ! ‘ I hes
At Linne dizztion rate. Construcuen began in 1959 on tour m Lale
{ the-arn sateihte vO ol which were presol he cable 1T\ industr
C:F Maobile Commu bons formed a) t 1= with Ericsson ol
Swedle 1| he your enture wned Hl w Eoiesson and 40% by Gl
will produce mobile radio svsteims and cel dar telephones for the inter
national market ard will serve the | ] Canaduan markets for ce

lar telephone systems

in addity U Government Services mamtained s po anon as a
leadin supphier ol techmcal, scienthc and management services tor
i'-' Id Stale & HH IWCIET governnw s o } L.onsultin MOV 81 LN
AEs Consuitmg and software serviees to many Forturne 5 AN
nd GE Computer Service offers service, rental. leasis g and repa‘r ol

ONDULTS ”’.“‘,u‘, .“|:,.,"..
!

Electrical Distribvution and Control

B Our technoloy puts electric

ity to work safely and efhiciently

GE Electrical Dustribution and Coatrol continued to make signithcant
advances i cost compett veness and strategnic alliances by introducit
rid-leadership products and forging new globial partnershups

|
)
el

Anindustry leader 1 p1 wiucts that ’\"vfl",l!'(!<-""|v1|f|'\"ll

power and equipment, this business introduced its new, integrated
spectra Series ™ line of panelboards, switchbos rds, busway and Spectra
RMS™ arcuit breakers in 1986 The modular design of these new
proaucts substanually improves both service capabihty and product
iy, Semvice improvements also were achieved through the consolidat
of customeer service, the opening ol a centralized warehouse and the
strategic placement of equipment centers around the United States
Internauonally, a joint business interest was established with GE(
of the United Kingdom. Under the 50/50 joint venture, GE's lualian
based athhate (COGEMEC) was combined witl ECs Belgnan-based
Vinckier NV and French-based Unelec 1o create a European business

that manufactures and markets

INOULION andc control ¢ HDITK
the European market

G F Electncal Distribution and Control also has responsibilit. for
GE's interests in the GE Fanue Awtomau LOorporauon jomt venture
in North Amenica and Europe. During 1619, thas factory automation

veniure ‘-’~-P i"\‘\l‘ l'1 *‘.'Ili.-.(w munuea t ICHhieve ,L';" i1t

growt! \'-’,"'*fl""l"v and market share. It also introduce 1 a tota
new line of progr unmable controliers. the Series 90 ™ tamily. and
IMPproved s own productivity by redesigning its tactory and instatlina

an automated, state-of-the-an printed ' viring board assemb
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B Our electr ¢ molors run every

thing from tr. wdmalls to cteel mulls

Avlowmd operator Lena 7 seslack of the G

Maotors plant m Ohpenisbore. Ky . check: the

dulomaled uwindg o ior Jor ¢ new (od
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/ ransportation Systems

B We provide the horsepower

to pull passengers, freight

and ore
The Santa ¥+ Ravwey u benehting from an
moamainy  powe -Oy-he-mule it

agreement wuh (o}

GE Motors achieved record sales performans « it | 989 despite increased
competit =4 n the global marketplace

Kecent sarategic moves to improve GEs compettveness included tie
restractunng of domestic manufar turing plants and the global consoli
dation of all industrial motor business=s. Motor manufacturing i
Rotea conunued *-‘«\;-.Hri With prod UChIOn INCTeases (0 Joint ventures
with hivundal and Daewoo. In addimon, BG Automotive Motors. the
new joint venture with Robert Bosch of West Germany, began prodo
uen of electrnc motors in the United States tor a vars iy of automaotive
apphcations. The venture . now shipping hlower and engine cooling
tan motors for Ford in th~ United States as well as exportis.g power
window motors for BMW i Luropx

i he competitiveness of this business s being further ennanced by
reducuons in total ovale ume and by responsiveness to custamers. Fo
example, customers now have direct access to GE Motors' data on
inventery, orders and technical information via the Motorlink ™ ele
tromc interface

Increased energy conservauon Programs among customers also
cr ated a scrong demand for Energy $aver® motors from GE. Thes

motors are leaders in woe industry with therr high efficency

GE Tre sportation Systems continued its su~cess in the US. inarket by,
winning about 60% of all new locomotive orders placed during 1989
One significant development is a new “partnership” with the Santa
Fe Railway that gives GE maintenance responsibility for the entire
Sante Fe Heet of GE locomotives. GE also received an order for 60
locomotives from Santa Fe

GE rema‘ned the leading competitor in electric drives for large
mining trucks. Orders were placed for 229 off-highway trucks, 120
tons and over, that will enter service on six continents

I'he Company also manufactured its first A( propulsion system
tor rapid transit, which will be placed into service with Metro North
In transit propulsion sysiems, AC inotors are expected to replac e IX
in the years ahead. CE's leading share in the U.S. market has been
based upon DC technology, so the Metro North demonstration is an
important part of the plan to maintain mar ket position

In another important 1989 move, GE acquired the locomotive
business of Bombardier in Montreal, Canada. The acquisition will
allow GE Transportauon Systems to broaden its partcipation in the
Canadian market by using the Montreal plant to support produd
tuon of Dash & locomotives for Canada and Super 7s. The latter

are rebuilt GE locomotives that pruvide reliable, lower horse

power for railroad applications not requiring the perform
ance of the Dash 8s. GE also received an order fron
Canada’s BC Rail for 22 of the Dash 8 locomotive
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Committees of .he Board
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Development snd Science Committes
Compensation
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Finance Committes

Nominating Committes

Pubitic Responsibllities
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Lawrence & Fouraker Hillman Edward E. Mood, Jr David C. Jones
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Statement of Earmings

Far the yvears ended Decemiber 31 (It mallions)

Revenues
Sales of goods
Sales of services
Other income (note 3)
Earnings of GEFS
GEFS revenues from operations (note 4)

Toal revenues

Costs and expenses (note 5)

Cost of goods sold

Cost of services sold

Interest and other financial chargass (note 7)

Insurance policy holder losses and benefits

Provision for losses on financing receivables (note §)

Ornher costs and expenses

Unusual expenses, including provisions for business
restructunngs (note 9)

Minority interest in net earnings (loss) of consolidated affiliates

Total costs and expenses
Earnings before income taxes, extraordinary item

and cumulistive effect of accounting changes
Provision for income taxes (note 10)

Earnings before ext-aordinary item and cumulstive effect of
accounting chang
Extraordinary item (note 25)
Cumulative effect to January 1, 1987 of accounting changes
Initial apphcauon of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 96 — “Accounting for Income Taxes™ (note 1)
Change in overhead recorded in inventory (nute 1)

Net earnings

Net earnings per share (in dollars)

Betore extraordinary tem and cumulauve effect of
accounting changes

Extraordinary item (note 25)

Cumulative effect to January 1, 1987 of accounung changes
Initial applicauon of Statement of Finanaial Accounting

Standards No. 96 — “Accounting for Income Taxes” (note 1)

Change in overhead recorded in inventory (note 1)

Net earnings per share
Dividends declared per share (in doliars)

Ceneral Electinc Company
and consolhidated afhliates

14RO 108K 1987
$31.314 $28.958 $20.9%7
9,678 9 840 9,870
6% 675 655
12,897 10621 K. 196
54,574 50 (89 48,158
22,827 21,155 22,359
6,878 7.676 7,290
6,591 4817 3912
1614 1,501 1,560
527 454 290
10,355 9,724 B.406
- — 1,118
L) 61 (4)
48,871 45 368 44,931
5,708 4,721 8,227
(1,764) (1,835) (1,108)
3,939 §.386 2119
- — (62)

- - 577

-— — 281

! slm 3,386 ! 2915

L4

$ L7

-
s

$ 233
(G7)
63
31

! §.20

$ 182

The notes 1o consotidated financial statements on pages 46-68 are an inte gral par of tis statement.



GE o GEFS
1989 1988 1987 1984 1988 1987
$31,326 $28.958 $29.937 $§ - $ - $ -
9,693 9 866 9,378 — — -
704 680 649 — —_ -
927 788 552 - - —
- - _— 12,945 10,655 8.225
42,650 40,292 40,516 12,045 10,655 8.225
22,839 21,160 22.359 -— - -
6,893 7,702 7.298 - — -
726 669 645 5912 4177 3277
- - — 1614 1,501 1.560
6,662 6,250 5979 3,708 3,484 2,440
-— — 1,027 - - 9l
38 29 1 46 32 (5)
87,158 35810 37,309 11,807 9,628 __7.653
5,492 4,482 3,207 1,138 1,027 572
_(1,55%) (1,096) (1,088) @1 (299) (20)
3,939 3,386 2,119 92?7 788 552
- - (62) - — (62)
- -— 577 — — 518
- - —t8l — — R
’__l& i 3,386 § 2915 ! 927 § 788 $ 1008 .
In the 1 consolidating data on th “GE" means the pre- 1988 basis of consolidation as dese
u'::m';\uuﬂ untu:nu "((i"l‘.!’s".m CGeeneral Ehnrxr::unml Services, Inc. and all :[ s al, bﬁd.e'." .n,: g
assaciated compariies. Transactions between GE and GEFS have been eliminated from the “General Electric Company and
consolidated a " columps on the pr sceding page. Eliminations are shown on page 47
'0\-& .77..:, )

27
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Statement of Financuu Position

. R
S e R e

and consohidated affiliates

At Decernbier 81 (In milbons) 19sy 1988
Assets
Cash and equivalents (note 11) $ 2258 $ 245
Markstable secrities carned at cost (note 12) 6,799 5510
Markewbie scuntes carried at market (note 13) LR L1 5,084
Secunties p *chascd under agreements (o resell 16,020 15511
Current recuivables ‘note 14) 6,976 6,780
Inventories (note 15) 6,655 6 486
GEFS hinanang receivables (investment in time sales, loans and

financing leases) — net (note 16) 41,779 85882
Onher GEFS receivables (note 17) 5476 4,699
Property, plant and equipment (including equipment leased

to others) — net (note 18) 15,646 15611
Investment in GEFS - -
Intangible assets (note 19) 8822 8,552
Ali other assets (note 20) 9,425 8,039
Total assets M § 10,865
Liabilities and equity
Short-term borrowings (note 21) $ 37200 $ %0422
Accounts pavaule (note 22) 6,666 6,004
Sccurities sold under agreements to repurchase 16,555 18,864
Secunues sold but not yet purchased, at market (note 23) 4,090 2,608
Progress collections and price adjustments accrued 3315 8,504
Dividends payable 426 369
All other GE current costs and expenses accruad (note 24) 5,650 5.549
Long-term horro wings (note 25) 16,110 15,082
Reserves of insurance affiliates 5,082 4,147
All other liabilities (notes 17 and 26) 7866 6,986
Deferred income taxes (note 27) 3,548 3,373

Total liabilities 106,453 91,418

Minonty interest in equity of consolidated affiliates (note 28) 1,004 981
Common stock (926 564,000 shares issued) 584 H%4
Other capital 826 823
Retained earmings 20,352 17,950
Less common siock held in treasury (872) (891)

Total share owners’ equity (notes 29 and $0) _ 2089 18,466
Totai liabilities and equity M $110.865

Commitmentz and contingent habilities (note $1)

The netes 1o consalidated financial satements on pages 46-68 are an integral part of this statement.
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GE

1984 1988
$ 1,749 $ 1823
49 80
7.218 7.110
6,655 6,486
9,606 9,960
6,069 4819
7,048 6,984
5,653 e
$ 44,107 $ 41288
$ 1,69% $ 186
2,901 2,156
3315 3,504
426 369
5,650 5,549
3,947 4,3%0
5,635 5.48]
(636) (641)
_229%4 22589
283 298

584 584

826 823
20,352 17,950
(872) (891)

_ 20,89 18,466
$ 4107 $ 41283

i 509 § 63%
6,750 54%0

B, 488 5,089
16,020 18811
41,779 35.9%9
5,856 4 806
5,980 4,251
1,774 1,568
s,m 418
L9098  § 740
$ 35,740 $ 28,781
4,144 4.1%2
16,555 15,864
4,09 2,088
12,165 10,862
5,082 4,177
2.2%6 1.505
4,179 4,0]4
84,141 69,373
718 758

1 |

1,702 1,379
4,366 %.439
6,069 __4819
190928 §7a0

In the su tal consolidating data on this page, “GE" means the pre- 1988 basis
of co«mm:::s described in note | to the cn?n:ﬂidued financial m‘:emnu.
“GEFS" reans General Electric Financial Services Inc. and ail of its affiliates and
assoctated companies. Transactions between GE and GEFS have been eliminated
from the “Gener: | Electric Company and consohidated affiliates” columns on the
preceding page. Eliminations are shown on page 47.

B N P—
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the vears ended Decembser 31 (o mullions)

Cash flows from opersting activities

Net earmnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash provided from

operatung acuvites

Extraordinary item and cumulative effect of changes in

accounung principles
Depreciation. depletion and amortization
Earnings retained by GEFS
Deferred income taxes
Decrease (increase) in GE current receivables
Decrease (increase) in GE inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts pavable
Increase in insurance reserves
Provision for losses on financing receivables
Net change in certain broker-dealer accounts
Al! other operaung activities

Cash provided from opersting activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Property, plant and equipment including equipment leased o

others
Additons
Dispositions
Net increase in GEFS finanang receivables

Payments for principal businesses purchased, net of cash acquired

Proceeds from principal business dispositions
All other investing activities
Cash used for investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in borrowings (less than 90-day maturities)
Debt having maturities more than 90 days
Newly issued
Repayments and other reductions
Sale of preferred stock by GE Capital

Disposition of GE shares from treasury (mainly for employee plans)

Purchase of GE shares for treasury
Dividends paid to GE share owners
Cash provided from (used for) financing activities

Increase (decreese) in cash and equivalents during year
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and equivalents at end of year

Ceneral Blecunc Company
and consohdated afhilates

1989 108K 1987

$ 5.09% $ 3384 § 24915
o~ — (796)
2,256 2,260 1913
281 124 87
(100) 128 188
(167) (204) 75
508 S04 149
486 315 6hY
527 4% 200
(578) (57%) (108
) 933 202
6,623 7,102 588
(5474) (3.681) (2.277)
1,264 470 R9O
(6,649) (6,057) (4,575)
(1,860) (3,504) (555)
—_ B8O 646
(400) (1,620) (LOO7)
(13,089) (13512) (6,968)
7360 8 R6R 2519
8,078 11,524 8219
(7,710) (R,801) (6,883)
—— w) -

509 $56 $61
(490) (387) (B46)
(1,479) (1,263) (1,177
_ 6,268 5697 2,108
(198) (713) 1,064
2,456 3,169 2,105
228§ 24 3,160

The notes to consolidated financial statements on pages 46-68 are an integral part of this statement



GE GEFS 7
1989 1988 1987 1989 1GRE 1987
$ 5.9% $ 3.9% $ 2915 $ 927 $ ThA $ 1,008
1,524 1,522 1,544 752 744 164
927 (788) (552) - — -
178 (215) (158) 103 439 195
(12) (170) 11 -— - —
(167) (209, 875 - — -—
693 (342) 2l (75) 694 48
- P — 486 315 H6Y
— .- — (872) (57%) (103)
__14_!._) 440 413 __3_;“__ 751 159
C,‘Ilo 3624 3,873 _!‘!! 349 2,179
2217 (1,8584) (1,698) (3,257) (1,797) 579)
205 118 410 1,089 352 480
o "t - (6,542) (5.943) (4.627)
(759) (2,41 6%) -— (1,101) (h41) (555)
- 830 646 — — —_
115 444 56) __(m) 52.007) (1,282)
_(2,656) (3,405) (648) (10,612) (9,936) (6,563)
850 (466) (961) 6,576 4,249 3515
204 934 396 7,874 10,291 7818
(1,772) (30) (238) (6,046) RI7H 6,04%)
| — — Raaust — m -
509 356 361 - — —_—
(490) (387) (846) - o -
(l,‘”) (l,?ﬁSl gl.l77) — — —
‘!,l 78) (856) 52.465) !,m 6,369 4 68K
{71 (637) 760 (124) (76) 304
__!B! 2,460 lﬂ(!) 3 709 405
! ll'l“ ! | i823 ! 2i460 ! 509 ! 633 ! 709
In the supplemental consolidating data on this page, "GE™ means the pre- 1988 basis of consolidation as described in note | 1o
the ed hnancial statements; "GEFS" means General Electric Finanaal Services, inc. and all of s affiliates and

associated companies. Transactions between GE and GEFS have been eliminated from the “General Flectric Company and

consohidated affiliates” columns on the preceding page. Eliminations are shown on page 47

— - —



Overview
(seneral | e Companv's consolidated financal state

! .
i

ments include the oetatled etfects of adding
panys manufactunng and .ndustrial sevices businesses
e a s of General Electnie Finanae! Sermvices In

CbrS

N sh dsr ot § M SLAL NS € olains

e consobdauon procedure. Among ocher things, that

w) "-. ins LOw i d ol )| \

G except

(:k1 \ GEFS” are used thus report to he!p reader

understand the vanous data. These terms are used {re

iventdy in thes Management Discussion {r clanthcauon or
g
f<o. met ecrrvings for 1989 were $35.93% bilhior
UXN. This was the third consscutive
louble dignt earmniags increases. ( e raun;
N £ of 11.3% of sales 2 all-ume record
® Ul ‘sn-lrs;,u.p'.pt'-;mmu\m}-'u\(
' ravonue gaimns in both dernestic and interna
e «.5. While virtually all key businesses
{ | igher earmings, parucularly good 1989
prriormi. e were reported in GE Friancial dorvices

Mase s ane. Medical 5, stems. See Indusiny Segnents

sginning on page 34 or addinona! detail abou perform
ince by various businesses of the Comp

Net eaimun, for 1989 and 1988 did not include COrpo
rate provisions for business restructuring EXPEnses, nor
did either vear include any impact trom accounting

1987 also reflected solid opera

changes. Not eamings in
ing performance, but analvsis of results for that vear was
complicated b+ two types of rransactions that ess#ntial

13

equaled each other i U hese were a redu

nonin v ax and afu arnings caused by unusaal
and ex dinary expense; ($747 million after taxes
ll‘m:l\}\ ;".l\i“('\.\ resorucuun S 10 n ;)-' e t‘\“x”(' }H‘“
itabuity; end an increac o after-tas earnings ($720 mil
hon) tfrom two accounung changes, one INVOIVING INCOME
taxes and the other involving overhead recorded in inven
boges, as t‘\p‘..n wd in note |

1 e following paragraphs discuss various aspects of the
onsohdated Statement of Larmngs on page 26
Consolidated revenues of $54 6 billion in ! 989 were 9%
more than the $50.1 billion for 1988 following a 1%
increas: trom 1987, The prine ipal components of consoli
dated revenues are “sales of goods and services” by GE andd
“revenues {rom operatuons” or “earned income™ from
GEFS

® (GE'ssales ol goods and services for |¢ 4 tota.xd 541
billirn, a 6% increase from the vear before. . irtually all of
the 19892 increase came from 2 hugher volume of ship
ments, with shghtly higher overall prices having only a

mnor ettect. Sales n 1588 were down about 1% fror

198"

with the etiect of about 2% lower shipmrent volume

Manag . .uent’s Discussion of Operations

partly Cilset by modestly highe: prices. 1f sal i the

thrce vears [987- 1989 were adjusted {or the effec

dacyuisit |“1.'nr|'9»¢u

1988 would have been about 3% and 1985 woeuld have

u HilTeas 1 AY8Y Lrom

beer up about 4% from 198

® GEs other income from a wide varety of sources ha
totaled between about $650 milhon and $700 nallion for

each of the lagt three vears. See note

® GEr " revenues, or earned income. fron operatons

for 198 - $12.9 hillio \ t |G8X", $10. 7
tihot h was 30% moi« than 1987 $8.2 billion. The
princy eason for Lhe increases has been highe: levels of
assets 1, GE Capital, including, the ¢ *e2t of acquisitions

{

Yields (1.6 prices or interest rates paid to GE Capital by its
cus o rs for its y nanang of their needs) increased fron
the pnor period in both 1989 ard! 1988, Note 4 shows
GEFS revenues from operations by prine 1ipal type of
ACUVIY

Principal costs and expenses {or 1, are those classined as
costs of goods and services sold .d selling, general and

administratve expense

® "Operaung margin” is sales of goods an’ wes less

the costs of sales and selling, general and adr ative
expenses. Uperaung margin was 11 3% of sa 198G
up trom 9.6% in 1988, Excluding abnormally retng

€ralor Compressor warranty “xpense provisions n 148K

operatn v 0 for that year would have been abou
Vel T
( e

ent improvements follow several vears
g wine o O margii rate was in the 8-10% range ar<d
L di. ¢ ongoing focus thrughout the
ompan' Lo wmproving producuvity. GE's Lotal cost pro
ducuvity, which excludes the effects of inflation averazed
5% for the last two vears ¢ orapared with results in the
1-2% range in the early vears of the 1980s. There were
no corpurate-level business restricturing eXpense |«
visions in 989 and 1985 to comnare ~ith the $1 bi

GE/S&P earnings per share increase/decrease compared
with 1834




provided in 1987, Those provisions in 1987, and for sev-
eral years prior to that, weie largely targeted at :myproving
COSLstructures.

-

® GE'sinterest expense in 1989 was $726 mullion, up
9% from $669 million in 1988, which was 4% more than in
1987. Higher interest expense in 1989 was due to a highet
average level of borrowings stemming from 1988 acquisi-
ton acuvity. The effect of this was sartly offset by some-
what lower average 1989 interest rates. The increase in
interest expense i 1988 from 1987 was mainly from
higher average mterest rates partly offset by a somewhat
lower average level of borrowings.

® GEFS interest expense totaled $5.9 billon in 1989,
A2% more than in 1988, which had been 27% more than
in 1987, The increased interest expense reflects the high ¢
level of borrowings that have been used main'y to invest in
earning assets -volved in a wide variety of inancings
made available ) third partes. The composite intecest rate
incurred for GEFS' finance acuvities was 9.60% i 1989
compared with 8.39% in 1988 and 8.11% in 1987. The
“spread,” or differ=nce between interest rates GEFS pays
to its lenders and rates it charges (o its customers, nar-
rowed in [ 989 after increasing somewhat in the previous
WO years.

® Among GEFS' other costs, the provision for losses
on finanang receivables of $527 million in 1989 was up
$93 million from 1988, which had been $144 million more
ia- 1097 At year- <l 1980 and 1988, GEFS' reserve
coverage was equal to 2.63% of finanang receivables com-
pared with 2 59% ax the end of 1987 Insurance policy
hoider loss.'s and benefits expense increased by 8% to
$1.6 billion in 1989 after having declined modestly the
previous vear. The current-year increase was pancipally
due to increased losses on life reinsurance, parually offset
by lower losses due to the reduced property and casualty
isurance business.

The ixterest of mino=ity share oumers in the equuy of con-
solidated affilates is relatively small but has heen growing
in recent years. For GE, the increase represents mainly the
mpact of recent aggressive formation of joint ventures
and alliances anned at increasing global - ompeutiveness.
For GEFS, the increase resulted principally from GE Capi-
tal’s sale of varable rate preferred stock to third parues in
1985 to augment its equity base. There were no further
sales of such stock in 1989,

The conslidated effective income tax rate was 30 9% in
1989 compared with 28.3% in 198" and 34.3% in 1987
(The US fe’ cra: statutory rate was 34% for both 1989
and 1988 compared with 40% in 1987} The decrease in
the US. f~deral statutory rate was the main reason for the
lower effective consolidated rates in 1989 and 1988 com-
pared with 1987, There a: 2, however, numerous reasons

Constant dollar sales per GE employee
(In thousands)

for differences between the statutory and effective rates,
Together with other informaton about income tax provi-
sions, an analysis of the differences between the US. fed-
eral statutory rate and the consolidated rate can be found
in note 10,

Dividends declared totaled $1.537 billion in 1989, or $1.70
per share. At the same ime, ' “ompany retained sufhi-
cient earnings (o support cnha. _ed productive capability
and to provide adequate financal resources for .nternal
and external growth opportunities. i he fousth-quarter
1989 increase of 15% in dividends declarea inarked the
14th consecutive vear of dividend growth.

Return on average share ouners’ equity reached 20 0% in
1989, up from 19 4% in 1988 and one and one-half points
better than for 1987, Informzuc - abont the {ive year GE
common share repurchase prograrn announced in
November 1489 can be found in this report in the section
that discusses Financial Resorrces and Liquidity starung
on page 38.

The global »conomic and political outlook has numerous
uncertainues. For example, 't is well known that the U S,
government is senously considening reductuo i defense
spending. It is also well known that ' - . 1s o consensus
on how much and what types of reductions ti- ~e will be or
how and when such reduct:ons will be impl _iented.
About one-eighth of GE's onsohidated revenues might be
aftected by such reductons. (See ludustry Segments on
the next page.) Longer range, reduced defense spending
could result in a lower federal budget deha, lover interest
rates, and consequen  “imulaton of domestic investment
arw rconomic growth. Fucther, global opportuniues for
market growth such as that anucipated from the sched-
uled European economic integration in 1992 appear plen-
uful. Despite these uncertainties, management believes
that the streng, 1 of GE's diversitv and worldwide leader
ship in key businesses position the Company to conunue
Zood performance into 199 and beyond.
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Industry Segments

Consobdated industry segment revenues and operating
i-rofit for the last five years appear on the opposite page.
The presentation o, consolidated indu try segments is in
two parts. one tor GE except GEFS and one for GEFS.
Consistent with vears before 1988, GE revenues and oper-
aung prohit conunue to include earmings of GEFS. Reve-
nues ind operating profit for GEFS by the indlustry
segments in which it conducts business are presented sepia-
rately with appropriate elisncavon of GEFS' earmings as
well as the minor effect of transactions between G and
GEFS segments. Additonal financial data plus detailed
descripuons of each segment can be fiund in note 33

Consolidated operaiing profit 1s the pninapal source of GFY
net earnings, and the relationship between the two is
depicted in the chart on this page. Consolid weu operating
profit exceeded §7 billion in 1909 with three segments —
Aircraft Engines, Matenals and Financing — each surpass-
ing $1 bilhor. ur the first ume. As shown in the char,
operating profit had dipped some in 1986, although net
earmings continued a steady increase. Operaung profit in
1987 wos alter absorbing $1.069 billion of unusua. corpo-
rate-level expenses as noted earlier in thi- Management's
Discussion. There were no such unusual expenses in 1989
or 1988 Commen:s on each segment follow.

A space reverues have been at about the $5.3 bil-
bon' - .. for the past three years, and operating profits
have .an;; d between $60( million and $650 million for
the same veurs. New orders received of $6 billion in 1989
were up 8% from 178», bringing the backlog of firm
unfilled orders at December 31, 1989 10 $8.0 billion, of
which approximately 40% 1s scheduled for completion in
1990

Although there was a significat increase 1.0 orders from
international customers in 1989, much of the A rospace
business is performed under contct for the U.S. govern-
ment, mainly for the Department of Defense. Des /e
orders growth over the past two years lead'ng to  record
backlog consistng of hundreds of difievent cont acts.
management expects that some defense industry udjust-
ments will take place in response to changing levels of
defense spending Management has developed long-range
conungency plans to antaipate such possible changes,
including a contemplated reduction of approximately
10,000 positions (about 25%) in the work force cver a
three-year period. In 1989, approximaiely 4,00.. <.« this
re.uction occurred - through attrition, a business dispo-
sition and layoffs. The need for similar acuions, if neces-
sary, will be determined over the next two or more years on
a bnsiness-by-business/location-by-location basis as busi-
ness conditions #~volve. No speaiic decisions have vet been
made regarding potential addition: 1 actons.

® Aircra;t Engines revenues were up 6% 0 1989 follow-
ing a small decrease in 1988 from 1987 Operaung profit
contunued w increase through 1489, New engine orders of
$5 billicn in 1989, following the very str g 1988 perform-
ance of $9.7 billion, brought firm backlog - to $13.3 bil-
hon at the end of 1984 compared with $12 4 billion the
year before. Of the 1989 backlog, about 45% is scheduled
for compietion in 1990, In vddiion, customers have
options that total $22 bilhon. Although military programs
are important to Aircraft Engines’ business, the surge in
commer al engines and accelerating growth in pans and
services provide a sound base as the der e of the 19905
begins.

® Broadcasting operating profi ncreased 12% in
1989 over 1777 conunuing the improvements since CE
acquired NB. mud- 1986, The 7% decline in 1989 reve-
nues reflected the lack of a counterpart 1o coverage ol the
1988 Olympic Games. A principal reason for better oper-
ating proht was higher productivity, which was partly off-
set by start-up costs associated wich launching CNBC, the
Consumer News and Business zable channel and related
cable activities.

® Industyial operating profits increased 6% in 1989 10
$847 milbion with improy *ments in most ongoing busi-
nesses. Flat revenuns reflected a number of business dispo-
siwons, prinapally the semiconductor business sold in late
1988, Improved operating profits in 1989 were led by
Electrical Distribution and Control, which included the
consolidation for part of the year of results for GE's Euro-
pean controls ventures with GEC of the Unuted Kingdom.
Transportauon Systems 1989 operating profits were sub-
stanually higt *. on a strong increase in shipments. Light-
ing operating rofi's were up what from the prior
year on skightly higher sales Factory Auiomatior., includ-
ing Drive Systems, had » good increase in operating profit
and sales. Motors onerating profits for 1989 were about

Corsolidated operating i net sarnings
(in billions) ek




Summary of Industry Segments

General Electnc Company and consolidated affihates

For the vears ended December 81 (In millions) 1989 1988 1987 1986 1985
Revenues
GE
Aerospace 35282 $5343 $ 5262 $ 4318 8% 3,085
Aircraft Engines 6,863 6,481 6,773 5977 4712
Broadca. ' 'ng 3,392 5,638 3,241 1 888 5
Industrial 7,059 7,061 6.662 6,770 6 946
Major Appliar.ces 5,620 5,289 4.721 4,352 8617
Materials 4,929 3,589 2,751 2,381 2,119
Power Systems 5129 4,805 4,995 5262 5824
Technical Products and Services 4,545 44381 8,670 3,021 2317
Earnungs of GEFS 927 788 552 504 413
All Other 319 394 3,176 3,379 1,071
Corporate ltems and Eliminations (1,415) 1.477) (1,287)  (1,077) (903
Towal GE 42,650 40,292 40,516 36,725 29,252
GEFS
Finanaing 7,938 5,827 3,507 2,594 2,469
Insurance 2,710 2478 2217 2,026 1,332
Securities Broker-Dealer 2,897 2316 2,491 1,176 -
All Other 14 34 iU I8 4
Total GLFS 12,945 _10,655 8,225 5814 3.805
Eliminations o021 _(B58) (583) (526) (43%)
Consolidated revenues $54. 74 $50.089 $48,155  $420i3  $32.624
Operating profit
GE
Aerospace $ 646 § 640 3 603 0§ 608 0§ 437
Aircraft Engines 1,050 1,000 940 R6C 673
Broadcastng 603 540 500 240 20
Industrial 847 798 302 575 658
Major Apphances 399 61 490 462 399
Matenals 1,057 733 507 424 330
Power Systems 507 503 189 354 740
Technical Prodi<ts and Services 589 484 275 112 24
Earmnings ot GL: & 927 788 552 504 413
All Other 176 168 72 162 376
Total GE 6,801 5715 4,440 4,310 4 068
GLFS
Financing 1,152 899 636 (99) 501
Insuraice 407 334 183 132 48
Securites Broker-MNealer (53) 64 (23) 83 —
All Giher (368) (270) (224) 77y __U2s)
Total GEFS 1,138 1,027 572 61) 424
Eliminations (908) (802) ~ (562) (51%)  _ 420)
Consoiidated _parating profit 7.036 5410 4,450 3,736 4,072
GE interest and financial charges (ret of eliminations) (708) (655) (635) (616) 354)
| GE items not traceable to segments (630) (56-) (588) 7 (287)
| Eamings before income tax s, extraordinary item ane
t cumuiative effect of changes in accounting principles g 5!703 ! 4,721 ! 5,227 $ 3,127 $ 3431

‘The notes to consolidated financial statements on

46-68 are an integral

| consolidation as described in note | to the cmm&r&‘?"nnchl statements; "g‘“FS" means General

affiliates and associated companies. Operaun t of WE segments excludes interest and other fina
m:hdathuﬂcnopr:;ldmoum,uﬂhmﬁ e

. -

is the largest clement of F EFS operaung costs.

of this statement_*

‘GE” means the pre- | 98 basis ot

Electric Financial Services, Inc. and ali of its
ncial charges; operating profit of GEFS
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even with 1988 on modestly higher sales

® Major Appliances revenues were $5.6 billion in 1959
a 6% increase from 1988 The current year included sales
from the Europran venture beginning in the second
quarter. This increase was parually offset by the absence of
revenue; of businesses that have been sold, mainly Roper's
outdoor power products. Order rates weakened duriag
the second bal’ of 1989 although core product hnes
shotved some market-share gains. The substantal increase
in 1989 Hperatung proft was primanly because prior-year
results were impacted severely by refrigerator compressor-
rulated warranty provisions

® Ma'erials revenues were up $1.4 bilbon in 1989 from
the year before, an increase of 39 . A large part of the
increase was due to having a fuli vear of Borg-Warner's
chemicals operations in 1989 compared with only the last
quarter . 1988, Incoming order rates for Plastcs slack-
ened in o later part of 1989 reflecung a slowing in arto-
motive ind appliance markets. The 44% increase for 1989
operaung profit reflected higher physical volume of Plas-
tics’ shipments, including a solid contribution from the
Borg-Warner Chemicals acquisition.. Superabrasives alsc
contrib ated 1o the higher operatung profit for 1989, Sili-
cones »d Ladd Petroleum profitability were about the
same ir 1989 and 1988

® Pouer Systems revenues were up 7% in 1989 — the
hrst upswing in hive years. Oneriung profit improved
shighth. Power Generation had improved operating profit
reflect ng higher shipments of gas turbines @ 4 wide-
spreac productivity improvements. Other businesses in
the seyrment had somewhat lower results than last vear
Spurrad by strengthening deman- by domesuc utilities
an | a $750 million order for the world's largest combined-
cyuie hower plant to be built by Tokyo Elecur Power
Company, Power Generation recorded new orders of
almait $4 billion in 1989 — over 40% ahead of 1988. The
Power Generauon backlog was $5 billion at December 31,
193¢, about 45% of which is scheduled for completion in
1990,

® Technica: Froducts an 1 Services operating profits
were up 22% in 1989, coimuing the good increases of
prio- years. The revenue in~  _of only 3% in 1989
retlected the impact of somx 1._scellaneous business dispo-
sinons. Higher operating pradit was sparked by Medical
Systems, where a sharp increase in operatiry profit
refieted hugher volume in x-ray, computeu tomography
and rnagnetic resonance imaging, as well as good produc-
uvity improvements. Medical Systems equipment orders

were very strong in the second half of 1989, The vacklog
of unfilled orders was $1.5 billion at year-end 1989, about
75% of which is scheduled 0 be shipped in 1990. Commu-
nications and Services had a good increase in operating
prohit with particularly good contributions by Gr. Amen-
com, Informauon Services and Mobile Communications

® Earniags of GEFS conunued to increase in 1989
Comments on GEFS industry segments appear below, Of
GEFS' 1984 net earrungs, GE Caputal's contribution was
$816 milbion, 36% more than 198%’s $60%) million, which
was 28% more than 1987's $470 milhion. (The 1987
amount excludes the cumulative effect of the income tax
accounting change and extraordinary loss discussed in
note 1)

® Financing operating profits conunued to increase
very substantially as they have each vear since 1986. The
level of earning assets and the impact of changes in inte+-
est rates on borrowing costs and financing yields are
umportant factors in Financing operaung profits. Total
assets of GE Capital increased by 23% in 1989 from 1988,
which had been 30% more than 1987 Finanang vields
increascd again in 1989 following an increase i 1988, GE
Capital's composite annual interest rate increased 119 basis
points in 1989 compared with a 43 Lasis-point increase in
1988, These increases in composite i1 terest rates reflecte d
principally the effect of higher short-term interesi rates
on comr.erdal paper borrowings. GF Capital's lending
“spread” (differe..ce between interest rates charged to cus-
tomears and interest rates paid to lenders) decreased some-
what dunng 1989, "he spread had increased somewhat
during 1988,

® Insurance operatung profit increased 22% in 1989
trom 1988. Principal reasons for the 1989 improvement
were the inclusion of all operations of FC'C Corporation
as a result of completing its acquisition early in 1989
and improvement in the mortgage insurance market.

Total asssts of GE Capital
fis billions)




Empioyers Reinsurance Corporation, which is the largest
single business in the insurance segment, had mode tly
higher net earnungs in 19589, ER O has increased revenues
each vear since 1986

® Securities Broker-Dealer (hidder, Peabody) had an
operating loss for 1989 compared with a proht in 1988
Most of the 1989 " 35 was incurred during the first quarter
of the year, and, a revenues improved “nd costs were
reduced, the last six months were about break-even
Kidder, Peabody took steps during 1989 to exit cer.in
businesses, to upgrade staff in others and to streamline the
organization

® All other GEFS consists principally of acquisition-

related interest expense not allocated to the segments

® GE items not traceable to segments include expenses
such as the Corporate R&D Center and corporate staffs
and income from COrpordate treasurv acuviues

intarnational operations

® Total internativnal operations (consisting of all
exports from the Unit~d States plus the results of opera-
uons located cutside the United States) had revenues
aggregating $13.9 billion and operaung profit of $2.8 bil-
bon in 1989, International revenues were $10.8 billion in
1988, up from $9.2 billion in 1987, Internavonal operat-
ing proht in 1988 was $2.1 buhon compared with $1.7
buhion in 1987

I'he chart (above right) shows the growth in GE's reve-
nues for international opeiations by areas of the world
over the last five years. An especiall, signifhicant increas= in
European operations is evident, especi lly in the last two
vears. This is the result of significant increases in exports
of Aircratt Engines; a much higher volume of shipments
of Plastics procacts; the establisi:ment of an increasing
presence ir. European Medical Systems markets related to
acquisitons beginning in 1988; and, in 1989, the impact
of venture acuvities, especially in Major Appliances and
Conirols

= GE’s exports from the United States to external cus-
tomers escalated to $6.2 billion 1n 1989, up from $4.9 bil-
Lion in 1988 and $4.0 bilhon in 1987. The chart (on the
right) shows the substanual growth in GE's exports for the
last fr. = years, led by the strong increases in Aircraft
Engines. Export sales by major world areas follow

GE's exports from tlie United States to external customars

(In milhions) 1OKRG 1988 1907
Europe $2915 $1.805 $1.u53
Paahc Basin 1.926 1,357 [,146
Americas 596 53%1 625
(Onher 724 (W¥

161 (124

Total international revenues
{in billions)

8 Onher
B Aowrocm
B Paciin Bus
B g

1985 19%6

In addinon, exports from GE operations in the United
States to GE athhates otfshore were $1.107 billion in 1989
$874 million in 1988 and $801 million in 1987

® GE again sharply mcreased its positive coniribution to
the U.S. balance of trade. In 1989, this contnbuaon netted
to about $4.8 bilion compared with $3.1 billion in 1988
and $2.1 billion in 1987, This improvement is attributable
to the higher level of export activity, as depicted below

GE contribution te U.S. balance of trade (estimated)
In billions) LURG 1UNR 1987

Export sales from the United States
I'o external customers £6.2 $4 9 $40
To GE affiliates 1.1 (1 (R

Total exports from the Unned

States 7.5 57 IR
Imports into the United States

From GE affihates 07 1.0 1.1

Directly from other suppliers . .6 1.5

Total imports into the Unuted
Stat=s . 2.6 P

GE posiave contmnbuton to US
halance of trade $4

GE's exports from the Uniled States to « cternai
customers (in b 'iions)

1985 1986 1987 1988 1989



Management’s Discussion of Fiancial Resources and Liguidity

Overview

This discussion of financial resources and liquidity focuses
or. the Statement of Financial Posiuon (page 2¢) and the
Staterne 1t of Cash Flows (page 30). As with the Statement
of Earmings, the content of these two statements is so dif-
ferent for GE and GEFS that most of the asset, hability and
cash How categorics do nat lend themselves to simple com-
binauon. This, of course, reflects the differences in the
narure of the businesses

Although GE's manufacturing and nonfinanaal services
acuvities involve a variety of different businesses, their
underlving charactenisucs are the developing, prepaning
tor market and selling of tangible products and services
Risk and reward are directly related to the ability to man-
age those acuvites. Financial leverage comes from realiz-
ing an adequate return on share ownars’ equity with
judictous use of borrowed funds.

GEFS 1s not a “captve finance company” or a vehicle for
“off-balance-sheet finanang” for GE. In fact, very litte of
its business is directly related to other GE operations. Its
principal businesses provide finanang, reinsurance and
broker-dealer services to third parties. The underiving
characterisucs of these businesses involve the management
of financial risk. They do not develop, manufacture or sell
products and ~ervices such as, for example, an aircraft
en neor the de. o g of a message over a TV network.
Tuewr risk :nd reward are related to the ability to provide
funds at competitive rates coupled with creative value-
added services. .

These fundamental differe -~ - are reflected in the
measurements commonly used by invescors, rating agen-
c'es and finanaal analysts. These differences will become
clearer in the discussion that follows with respect to the
more significant items in the two financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position

® Marketable securities carried at cost for each of the
last ©* -~ vears were mainly debt securities held by GEFS'
insurcnce affiliates in support of *heir obligaticns to
policy holders. The increase to $6.8 billion u: 1989 from
$5.5 billion in 1988 reflects the acquisition of FGIC.

® Marketable securities carried at market represent
primarily the investing and trading portfolio of Kidder,
Peabody and, to a lesser degree, similar insurance affilate
activities. The increase to $8.5 bilhon in 1989 from
$5.1 billion in 1988 reflects a higher level of activity in
these businesses as well as higher market prices at the end
of 1989 compared with 1988.

® Securities purchased unde, agreements to resell
(“reverse » urchase agreements”) are related to the habil-
ity acco'nt: Securiues sold under agreements to repur-
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chase (“repurchase agreement.”). These typicaliy repre-
sent highly iquid, short-term invesuments f excess funds
or borrowing of such funds from others. At year-ends
1984 and 1988, the balaices (both assets and habilines)
were solely tho: » of Kidder, Peabody in connecuon with s
broker-dealer acuvities

8 GE’s current recetvables are 1 inly amounts due from
customers and were $5.9 billion at ' # end of each of the
last two vears. Customer receivables “turned over™ 7.50
trnes in 1989 compared with 7.01 umes in 1988, (“Turn-
over” relates receivables to sales and is a measurement of
collection efhiaency. Higher turnover indicates faster col-
lecuons.) GE's trend in this area has been improving since
1985, primarily as a resul: of vigorous management atten-
uon to credit and collecuons. Other receivables measure-
ments, such as delinquency ratios and amounts past due,
also ha . been improving, and the overall condiuon ot cus-
*omer receivables remained  celient ar the end of 1989,
Current receivables other than amounts owed by cus-
tomers are amounts that did not onginate from sales of
GE products or services, such as advances to suppliers in
connection with large contracts

® Inventories of $6.7 billion at the end of 1989 were
slightly higher than the $6.5 billion at the end of 1988.
Inventones turned over 4.44 times in 1989 compared with
4.38 umes in 1988. As with receivables, this is a measure-
ment of efhaent use of resources and has been showing
steady improverme-.t in recent yeai - There were no signifi-
cant changes 'n ‘nventory levels in the key businesses
between the last two year ends. Last-in first-out (LIFO)
revaluations decreased $37 million in 1989 compared with
an increase of $150 million in 1988. LIFO reviluadons
increased $324 1aillion in 1987, mostly related to the
accounung change described in note 1. Included in these
changes were decreases ¢ “ $68 million, $23 million and
$22 million (1989, 1988 and 1987, respectively) due to
lower inventory levels. In each of the last three years, there
Was a el current-year price increase.

GE/S&P dividends per share increase compared with 1584
7%

%

a2
s 28
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® GEFS’ financing receivables grew 10 $41 8 hillion in
1989, a $5.9 billion (16'7) increase. Note 16 includes addi
tonal info, mation a: 1 details about these receivables,
which are GEFS' single most important earning asset

GEFS provides ume sales awd loans on various b ses
with varying levels of security and differing maturities,
and it also makes preferred stock investments and occa-
sionally receives warrants convertible into common stock.
Time sales and loans grew $4.1 billion to $30.9 billion.
Increases were in retailer and auto financing ($2.1 billion);
commer | real estate financing ($1.2 billion); and com-
mercial and industrial loans ($1.1 billion). Home and rec-
reauon financing decreased by $6¢, * million.

Included in ime sales and loans a d other assets were
fundings and investments, principally by GE Capital, for
leveraged corporate restructurings, management buyouts
and recapitalizations — so-called leveraged buyouts or
LBOs. GE Capital structures these transactions to afford
iself sufficient collateral protection with approximately
75% of investment positioned at the senior debt level. The
GEFS portfolio at December 31, 1989 was widely dis-
persed throughout the United States and, 10 a lesse:
degree, Canada and Europe; it included a number of dif-
ferent industries; and it consisted of approximately 100
accounts aggregatng approximately $8.3 billion. Receiva-
ble losses from these transactions have averaged about 1%
of investment over the past three years and have been
much more than offset by the equit . gains that are en
integral pe:t of LBO finanangs.

Also included in GEFS' ume sales and loans were $8 8
billion invested in approximately 800 real estate loans. vir-
tually all tor commercial properties. Typically, such loans
were structured so that exisung cash flows more than cov-
ered debt service and were secured by first mortgages
largely on multitenant office buildings and apartmen:
projects. Loans for land acquisiion and development and
project construction were not an important part of the
portfolio. At year-end 1989, the portfolio was geographi-
cally balanced with wivestmer... througiiout the United
States and, to 2 much lesser extent, Canada and Europe.
Receivable losses on commercial real estate loans have
averaged significan’ly less than 1% of investment over the
past three years

Investment in financing leases reached $12.8 billion at
the end of 1989, up from $11.1 billion at the prior year
end. Details of these brlances can be found in aote 16.

The allowance for losses deducted in arriving at the net
balance of $41.8 billion increased from $972 million at the
end of 198 to $1.127 billion at December 31, 1989,
Inchuded were additions by charging operations ($527 mil-
licn in 1989, $434 million in 1988 and $29¢  illion in
19€7) and write-offs of $420 million in 198° 94 million
in 1988 and $171 million in 1987, Overall, nc. .o8s experi-
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ence as a ;ercent of average inanang receivables was
0.94% in 1989, 0.81% in 1988 and 0.62% in 1987. The
increases in 1989 and 1988 reflect significant gy wth in
credit card operations whose loss rates, as expected, are
relatively high 'n comparison with other GE Capital busi-
nesses. At the end of borh 1989 and 1988, the reserve cov-
erage on financing receivables was equal to 2.63% of the
receivables balances outstanding. The relationship was
equal to 2.59% at the end of 1987,

Although the nature of GE Capital's business is such vat
an economi downturn or increasing level of interes. rates
could result in financial stress to customers, management
helieves that the diversified nature of the portfolio affords
reasonable protection against any material negative impact
on GEFS’ operating results or financial condition. In sum-
mary, GEFS' financing receivables are in good condition
and reserve protection is appropriate.

® Property, plant and equipment (including equipment
leased to others) aggregated $15.6 billion at December 91,
1989, up $2.0 billion from $13.6 billion a vear earlier GE's
property, plant and equipment consists of investments for
it own productive use, whereas the largest element of
GEFS' investment is in equipment that is provided to third
parties on operating leases. Detauls by categories »f invest-
ment can be found in note 18.

GE’ total expenditures for new pant and equipment
during 1989 were $2.3 billion, bringing the total of the last
five years (excluding the unusually .arge addicion by acqui-
sion of RCA in 1986) to $14.3 billion. Of that five-vear
total, 32% w.s to increase capacity; 25% was to increase
productivity; 12% was to support new business start-ups;
14" was to replace and renew older syuipment, and §7%
was for such other ; irposes as improving R&D facilities
and safety and env.: snmental protection

GEFS added $3.1 billion to its equipment leased to oth-
ers in 1989. Current-vear amortization was $647 million.
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® Intangible assets aggregated $5.5 billion o December
S1, 1989 The majority of this consolidated total is GE's
intangbles, which were $7 0 billion at that date, about the
same as a year carber. Fhe largest portion of GEs balance
(in both goodwill and other intangibles) arc e from the
acquisiion of RCA Corporation ' 1986, Other baiances
were mainly related to acquisinons of 3org-Warner's
chetnicals businesses, Roper Corporation, a TV station in
Miami, Fla., and CGR medical business 2-seis. The
increase in 1989 included completion of Borg-Warmer
valuauons

GEFS intangible assets were $1 .8 billion at the end of
1989 compared with $1 .6 billion a year earlier, principally
reflecung the 1989 completion of the acquisition of FGIC
Corporation

® All other assess totale! $9 4 billion at December 81,
1989 compared with $8 0 billion a year earlier. These
include a wide vanety of items as detailed in note 20 GE's
all other assets increased §1.1 billion durir 2 1989, prina-
pally because of new investments in joint ventures classi-
hed as “associated companies.”

® Tota! borrowings on : consolidated basis aggregated
$53.3 billion at December 31, 1989 compared with $45 5
bilhon at the end of 1988, However, borrowings must be
looked at separately for GE and GEFS. The major debt-
raung agenass evaluate the financial condition of the enu-
ues separatety because of their disunctly different business
characterisucs. Using criteria appropriate to each, those
MAjor rating agencies continue to give top raungs to debt
of both GE and GEFS.

GE’s total borrowings were $5.6 billion at the end of
1989, a decrease of $548 million from the end of 1988
Long-term borrowings of $3.9 billion were down from
$4.3 billion a vear earher, and short-term borrowings
declined 10 $1.7 billion from $1.9 billion. TLe current por-
ton of lhng-term borrowings included in short-term bor-
rowings dropped about §1 1 billion during 1989 reflecting

mainiy reductions related o debt involving the 1986 acqui-

sition of RCA Corporation. By the end of 1989, a!l debt of
RCA Corporation that had been assumed by GE had beey
retired. GE's total debt ut the end of 1989 equaled 21.0%
of total capital, or a decrease of 3.9 points from 24.9% at
the end of 1988. This relationship of debt and equity capi-
@l 1s sound and is well within the range of what would be
expected of 1 strong industrially oriented firm.

GEFS total borrow ngs were $47 9 billion at Decem-
ber 81, 1989, of which $35.7 billion is due in 1990 and
$12.2 billion is due in subsequent vear.. The comparable
amounts at the end ~7 1988 were: $39.6 billion total;
$28.7 billion due within one year; and $10.9 billion due
beyond that. The increases were 1o support the growth in
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Consolidated
{In billions)

GEFS earning assets. GEFS' compusite taterest rates were
discussed in connection with the Statement of Eamings. A
large portion of GEFS' borrowings is in the form of com-
mercial paper ($30.5 bithon and $24.6 billion at the ends ol
1989 and 1988, respectively). Most of this commercial
paper 1s ssued by GE Capital. lts commeraal paper has
matunues of up 1o nine months. The average remaining
terms of GE Capitals commercial paper were 23 days at
the ends of 1989 and 1985, Average interest rates on GE
Capital’s commeraal paper were 8.81% and 9.32% at the
end of those respective years, “Leverage.” the s elationship
of debt to equity capital, is expected by investors to be
much higher in a hinancal snterpnise than in an industrial
enterprise. GE Capital's rato of debt 1o equity was 7.80 to
1.00 at the end of 1989 compared with 7.67 10 1.00 at the
end of 1988, This relatonship of debt to equ.ty capital is
believed 1o be sound and 1s appropriate for a highly ratec
financial seivices Caterprise

Notes 21 and 25 provide details of short-term and long-
term borrowings

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows (page 30) emphasizes the
analysis of cash flows from three broad categones — oper-
aung activities, investing acuvities and finanang activities
Inasmuch as the cash management acuvites of GE and
GEFS are separate and distinet, it is more useful to review
the separate cash flow statements than the consolidated
“tatement.

GE

GE's cash and equivalents aggregated $1.7 billion at the
end of 1989, slightly lower ($74 million) than at the end ~°
1985, During '989, GE geneiated $4 .8 billion in cash from
1ts operaung activiies. i his provided resources to invest
over $2 billion in new plant and equip ment; to make acqui-
siions, the principal ones of which requ ired cash outlays of

total ussets
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almost $800 mullion; to reduce total debt by $500 million;
and to pay $1.5 billion in dividends to share owners

Operating activities are the principal source of GE's cash
Hows. Over the past three vears, operating activities have
provided more than $12 bilion of cash. Prinapal on-
going appicavons usually are to invest in new plant and
equiprent ($5.8 billion wotal over the last three vears) and
to pay dividends to share owners ($3 9 billion total over the
last three vears). Expenchitures for new plant and equip-
ment are again expected o be in the $2 hillion-plus (. ange
for 1990, and dividenxds are expected to inc -ease with
earmings

Based on past performance and current expectations, ir.
combination with the financial flexibility that comes with
the highest credit ratings, GE is in a sound position to con-
unue making lorg-term investments for future growth,
including selective acquisitions and investments in joint
ventures. The five-year share repurchase program dis-
cussed separately on this page is a direct result of GE's solid
financial condition and cash-generadng capability.

GEFS

GEFS’ principal sourre of cash is finanang activitier that
involve continuing rollover of short-term borrowings and
appropriate addition of long-term borrowings with a rea-
sonalsie balance of maturities. Over the past three vears,
GEFS’ outstanding borrowings with 9%0-day or less maturi-
ues have increased a total of $14.3 billion. New borrowings
of $26.0 bullion having maturities longer than 90 days

ere added during those year: . hile $21.5 billion of such

“~er-term borrowings were paid off.

‘S’ prinapal application of cash has bevn in in vest-
iy - - ivites to grow the business. Of the $27.1 hillion
of net wvestments by GEFS over the past three years,
$17.1 Lilbon was devoted to addi -« 4l financing receiv-
ables. Other principal investments during these years were
§$2.2 billion to acquire new businesses as CEFS expands its
activities and $5.6 billion for new equipment, which is
mainly for lease to others.

Cash used for new investinents in excess of cash pro-
vided from additional borrowings has been provided
mainly by generation of $7 .8 billion of cash from operat-
ing activities for the years 1987-1989 and from ssuance of
$600 million cumulative vanabie preferred stock by GE
Capital in 1988. GEFS' cash and equivalents balan-e has
remained relatively stable throvghout the period — again
in keeping with its business missien.

In summary, based on past performance and current
expectatons, in combinauon with the financial flexibility
that comes with excellent < ¢ . ratungs, GEFS is well posi-
tioned to continue grov assets and to produce
good rete of return on Gt. - are owners' investment in
GEFS

Returmn on share owners’ equity

Five-year share repurchase prog “ar
In MNovember 1989, GE's Board of Directors a thorized
the repurchase of up w $10 billion of the Compants com-
mon stock over the next five vears. This authornzaton was
made after evaluaung various alternatives to enhance
long-term share owner valuc. Based on the financial and
compettive positions of the Conipany, its debt capacity
and the cash-generating characteristics now present in its
key businesses, management believes GE has the fiexibility
to continue increasing dividends in line with earnings, to
maintain a high degree of internal reinvestrient, to make
celective & quisitions cmplementary to existing business
— and aso to repuichase a significant wnount of stock.
Such repurchases will result in higher earnings per sha.e
and returns on equity than would otherwise be the case.

The repurchase plan is designed to be Cexible. Shaces
will be acquired with funds from a combination of free
cash flows and new borrowings while keeping GE* debt-to-
capital ratio in the 25% range. Should world economic
conditions, a major acquisition or other circumstances war-
rant, the Company would modify the pace and dimension
of i’ : plan to maintam GE's solid financial position. This
repurchase plan was reviewed with debt rating age e,
who confirmed GL's Triple-A debi rating

Durine the last six weeks of 1989, about 3 8 million
shares were reacquired at a cost of $236 million
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Management’s Discussion of Selected Financial Daua

Selecird finencial data summarizes on the opposite page
scme data frequently requested aboui General! Electri
Company and provides a record that may be useful for
reviewing treads. be data are divided into three secuons
upper partion -— consohdated intormaton, middle por-
uon - GE data that retlect vanous conventional measue-
ments for industrial enterpnises, and lower portion —

GEFS data that reflect key information and ratios peru-

nent 1o hinancal services

GE’s total research and development expenditures were a
record $3. 4931 balhon in 198y, up 9% from 1988 $5.60!)
bilbon. Of the 1989 expenditures, $1.334 bilkon was from
GE'’s own funds, an increasz of 15% from 19885 §1.155
bilion. Expenditures from funas provided from customers
{mainly the US government) were $2.547 billion in 1983,
or 6% more than $2.446 billion the vear before. Aircraft
Engines and Aerospace account tor the largest share of
GE's R&D expenditurss from both Company and cus-
tomer funds. Other significant expenditures of Company
funds were for Medica!l Svstems, Plastics and Power
Systems

G:E's total backlog of firm unfilled orders at the end of 1989
was $30.5 billion. Orders constituting this backlog may be
canceled or defe~rea by customers (subject in certain cases
to cancellation penalties). Commen's on unfilled orders
for businesses with relauvery long manufacturing cvcles
can be found in the discuscion of Industry Segments
which begins on page 34. About 46% of the 1989 towl
unfilled orders 1s scheduled to be shapped in 1990 with
meat of the remainder to be shipped in the two vears after
that. For comparison, about 49% of the 1988 backlog was
expacted to be shi; ped in 1989

Unfilied orders for export of all types of products and
services from the United States were $9.9 billion at Decem-
ber 31, 1989, up from $8.2 billion the vear before. The
backlog of Aircraft Engine orders is a major port.on of the
export backlog, but significant increases were r >corded in
1989 by Aerospace and Power Systems

Inflation has not been a significant factor in consolilated
earmnings growth in recent vears because of the rela «ly
modest rate of price increases in the ecor Hmies o uie
United States and of the prinapal .00 g1 countries where
the Company has operations

Regarding envi-ommental matters, the operations of the
Company, like those of other companies engaged in simi-
lar businesses. r.volve the use, disposal and cleanup of sub-
stances regulated urder environmental protection laws.

In 1989, GE had capital expenditures of asout $110 mil-
hon for projects related to the environiment. The compara-
ble amount for 1988 was about $70 millon. These amounts
exciude expendit: .res {or remedial actions, which are dis-
cussed on this page. Capital expenditures for environmen-
tal purposes have included pu.Jution control devices
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SUCH as waste-water treatn ent in]y." ‘,“H.(Zhi Waler moni
Loring, devices, ain Sll‘lp‘l'r& ol u‘p«ralun_ an l incinerilon
at new and existing taciliies constructed or attered in the
normal course of business. Consistent with GEs policies
stressing environmental responsibility, average annual
capital expenditures for nonremedial nrojects are pres
ently expected 1o range between §150 million and $200
milhion over the next two years. Thie principal reasons for
thi, expected increase from exisung levels are new o
expanded prog. ams 10 bu id or modify manufacturing
processes so they can use vlternative methods that will
result in minimzing environmental waste and reducing
ermussions

The Cempany also is involved in a sizable numbeor of
remedial a.*ions to clean up hazardous wastes as required
by federa! and state laws. Such statutes iequire that
responsible parues fund reredial acuons regardless of
tault, legality of origanal disposal or ownership of a dis-
posal site. In 1989, GE spent approximately $75 millic~ on
remedial cieanups and related studies compared with
approximately $48 milion speat for such purposes in
1988. It is presently expected that remedial cleanups and
related studies will require average annual expenditures in
the range of $80 n. _iic1 1o $120 million over the next two
VEars

It1s difficult 1o estimate reascnably the ulumate level of
enviroamental expenditures due to a number of uncer-
tainues, including uncertair.ues about the status of law,
regulation, technoiogy, insurance coverage of GE costs and
information relating 10 individual sites. Subject to the fore-
going, Company management believes that capital
expenditures and remedial actions to comy ly with the
present laws governing environmental protecuon will not
have a matenial eftect upon its capial expenditures, camn-
INgs 0: competitive position

Consolidated employman: at year end
(l: thousands)




S:flected Financwal Data

(Dollar amountsin millions. pee-share amounts in dollars) 1989 1988 1987 1456 14985
Gene-sl Electric Company and consolidated affiliates
Revenues $ 54574 §$ 50089 § 45,158 $ 42018 § 32624
Earnings betore extraordinary loss and cumulative
effect of accounting changes 3.939 3,386 219 2492 23N
Net earnings 5,939 3,386 2915 2492 2,277
Dividends declared 1,537 1514 1,209 1,081 1,020
Earned on average share owners’ equity 20.0% 19.4% 18.5% 17.3% 17.5%
Per share
Net eamings $§ a5 $ 375 § 320 § 273 § 2%
Dividends declared 1.70 1.46 1.3%2% 1.18% 1114
Stock. price range G4%-43'2  4T4-38% 66%-38% 44%-33%  3674-27%
Total assets 128344 110,865 95414 84 818 49,123
Long-term borrowings 16,110 15,082 12517 10,001 5577
Shares 6"/ . ading -— average (in tho. - nds) 904228 901780 911639 912594 910,762
Share cwnex acc unts — average 526,000 529000 491,000 492000 506,000
Employees at year end
Domestk 2430%0 255,000 277000 02000 243,000
Foreign _ 49,000 43,000 45,000 71,000 56,000
Toial emplovees 202000 298000 392000 373,000 299,000
GE data
Short-term borrowings $ 169€ § 1861 $ L1110 § 1813 § 129
Long-term barrowings 3,947 4,330 4,491 4351 758
Minority interest 283 228 190 189 126
Share ywners' equity 20,890 18,466 16,480 15,109 13,671
Total capual invested $ 26816 § 24885 § 22271 § 21462 § 15847
Return on average total capital invested 17.0% 16.4% 14.7% 139% 16.2%
Borrowings as a percentage of total capual invested 21.0% 249% 25.1% 28.7% 12.9%
Current assets $ 15671 $ 15499 $ 15739 $ 14288 § 12546
Current liabiliues 13,988 13419 12,671 L1461 8919
Working capual $ 1683 § 2080 § 3068 § 2827 § 3627
N e s e Taim—====
Property, plant and equipment additons (other than
by acquisiion of RCA) $ 2251 § 2288 § 1778 $ 242 $ 1953
Year-ead orders backlog 30473 27,265 22,737 23,943 23,117
GEFS data
Earnings before extraordinar, ‘o°s and cumulative
etfect of accounung change $ 027§ 788 § 552 § 50 § 413
Net carnings 927 788 1,008 504 413
Share ownet's equity 6,009 4819 3,980 2,594 2,302
Earned on a2verage share owner’s equity 17.6% 18.0% 18.0% 19.7% 19.9%
Borrowings from others $ 47905 § 39593 § 30885 § 23397 $ 16393
Ratio of debt to equity (GE Capual) 7.80:1 1671 7.98:1 T8 7891
“otal assets of GE Capual $ 50606 § 47766 § 36644 § 27970 § 22469
R-serve coverage on finanang receivables 263% 2.63% 2.59% 2.59% 2.57%
Insurance premiums written $ I1EI9 § 1809 $ 1,729 $ 1704 $ 1092
Serunies ' “er<dealer earned income 2,897 236 2,491 1,176 -
See notcs | and the consolidated financial st.cements for informacon about 1987 accounting changes and extra srdinary loss and e 2 for

infotn - tion abe
1086, “CE” mean. L«

nawm x&u:mom ard related mauers. !n adduion,
-1 hasis of consobdation as described in

RCA Corporation and K

er, Peabudy & Co. were acquired n June

note | o the consolidated Enancial statements, “GEF. ineans General

Electric Financial Services, Ine. and all of its affiliates and associated companies. Transactions between GE and GEFS hove been eliminated from
the “consolidated data * Share data reflect the 2-for-1 stock sphitin Aprii 1987,

R
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Managénmlis Discusswn ¢f Financial Responsibic..y

The finascial informaton in this report acluding the
audited financial statements, has been prepared by man-
agemen.. Preparaton of financial statements and related
data involves esiimates and the use of judgment. Account-
mg principles used in preparing the financial starements
are those Wia aie genetally eccepted in the United States.
These principles are consistent in most IMportant respect.
with standards issued to date by the Imernational
Acceuniung Suandarss Comunttee. Where there is no

st gle specified accounting prinaple o tandard, man-
ager  nt makes a choice from reasonalae, accepted alter-
nauves, using methods that it believes are prudent for
Gereral Electric Company and its consolidated affiliates.

To sateguard Company assets, it is important to have a
sound but dynamic system of internal financial controls
and procedures that balances benefits and costs. One of the
key elements of intermal financial controls has been the
Company's success in rec, aiung, selecung, training and
developing professional financia! - ~agers. Their
responsibilities include implementing and overseeing the
financial control svstem, reporting on management's stew-
ardship of the assets entrusted to it by share owners, and
performing accurate and proper maintenance of the
accounts.

Management has long recognized its responsibility for
conducring the affairs of the Company and its affiliates in
an ethical and socially responsible manner. General Elec-
tric Company is dedicated 10 the highest standards of
mtegrity. Integrity is not an occasional requirement but a
continuing commitment that is reflected in key written
policy statcrnents. These cover, among other subjects,
environmentai prc - ection, potentially conflirung outside
business interests of employees, comphance with antitrust
laws, and proper domestic and international business prac-
uces. Management insists on maintaining the highest stan-
dards of conduct and pracuces with respect to transactious
with the Urited States government. 1 here is continuing
emphasis to all cmployees that even the apnarance of
impropriety can erode public confidence in the Company
and in the government procurement process. Ongoing
education, communication ard review programs are
designed to create a strong compliance environment and
to male it clearly und-~rstood that deviation from Com-
pany policies will not be tolerated.

KPMG Peat Maowick provide an objective, independon:
review of management’s discharge of s suligatons relat-
ing to the fairness of reponted operaung results and finan-
cial condwon. Their report for 1989 appears on the
Oppolite page.

The Audut Committee of the Board (consisting solely
of Directors from outside GE) rnaintams an ongomng
appraisal — on behalf of share owners — o1 the effective-
nuss of the  ndepeadent auditars, the Company's staff of
corporate auditors amd management, with respect e “he
firancial reporting process, and of the adeguacy of inver-
nal hnancial controls. The committee also reviews the
Company's accounting policies, corapli=nce with key pols-
aes, and the Annual Report and proxy naterial.

Johu E Weich, |r.
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Ofhcer

(2l s —

Denmis D. Dammerman
Senior Vice Presidenit
Finance

February 16, 1990



Independent Auditors’ K. port

Yo Share . wners 2na Board of Divectars of
General Electric Chmpany

We have audited the accompanving «.ater . ot of financial
. nsition of General Electric Company a:x” consolidatedt
affiliates as of DeCerrber 31199 and ) 888 acd the
related statements of ¢ “mings and cash vkows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
1989, These consobidat~d financial statements are the
resgonsibility of the Company’s management Our respon-
sibility is vo express an opiion on these consohc.ated
hinancial satements based on our audits.

We conducted our avd s in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standaris. Those standards require that
we pian and perform the avdit 1o obain reasonable assar-
ance abo.ut whether the financial siaterments are free of
material misstaternent. An audit inc’* Zas examining. 01 a
test basis, evidence supporung the ~mounts and distic-
sures in the firancial sttements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounung principes used and significant
esumates made by managument, as well as evaluating the
wverall finanaal statement presentaticn. We believe that
our audits proviae a reasonabie basis for our opirson.

Ia our opunor, the aforzmentioned finan.ia! statements
appearing on page: 26-3! aud 46-68 prese ot fairk., i all
warerial respects, the £ 1ndial position of General Elecare
Company and consoli- .ed afhliates at December 31, 1989
and " 988, ana the results of their aperations and their cash
flows for each of the years in the tnree-year period ended
December §1, 1989, in conformity with gencrolly accepred
accountng principles.

As discussed in note | to the consolidated financial sate-
ments, in 1987 the Company changed its methods of
accounting for incom: taxes und cverhead recorded in
inventory. 'We concar with these accountic g changes.

Kt & St Pronrnid
KPMG Peat Marwick
Stamford . Connecticut

February 16, 1990

0 OO———y o i it <

45
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(note B) 53
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting
poici

Consolidation and financial statement presentation
Comsalidation. he consolidated financial s.atements rep-

resent the adding together of all companies in which Gen-
eral Electinic Company directly or indirvetly has a nugonity
ownership or othervise controls (“affilated companies™)
Prior 1o 1988, results of financial services afhiliates — the
principal one being General Electric Finanaal Services,
Inc (GEFS or GE Finanaal Services) and its afhiiated con,
panies — were included on the equity basis as one linc in
total earnings and net asseis. This was permussible ninder
accounting rules in effect before 1988, Because financial
services opes iions are so different in nature from and
essentially unrelated 1o operations of other GE businesses,
management believed “hat financial statements were more
understandable if GEFS' statements were shown sepa-
rately. It should be emphasized that, under both current
and prior procedures, co: - olidated net eamings and share
owners’ equity are the same for all periods presented.
However, substantially more detail 1s required under the
current standasd than under rules previously in effect.
Also as a result of this change, the Company adopted an
unclassifiec’ . nsolidated statement of financial position

Management believes it s important to preserve as
much as possible the identity of the principal finanaal data
and related measurements to which share owners and
others have become accustomed over the years. Accord-
ingly, consolidated finanaial statements and notes now are
generally presented in a format that includes daws grouped
basically as follows.

® GE — tius is essenually the pre-1988 basis of consoli-
dauon except that it inciudes some very small financial
services affiliates previously not consolidated. The effect of
transactions among companies within this group has been
eliminated. Where appropriate for clarification or empha-
sis, particularly in the notes, this group of entities also is
referred 1o as “GE except GEFS."

® GEFS — this affiliate owns all of the common stock of
General Electric Capital Corporation (GECC or GE Capi-
tal) and of Employers Reinsuance Corporation (ERC),
and B0% of the stock of Kidder. Peabody Group Inc
(Kidder, Peabody). These affiliates and their r-spective
~ffiliates are consolidated in the GEFS columns with the
effect of transactions among them eliminaied before the
consolidated presentation.




C

® Consolidated — these columns represent the adding
togedher of GE and GEFS. However, it is necessary 1o
remove the effect of transacuons between GE except
GEFS and GEFS to arrive at a consolidated total. The
“eliminations” used to armive at these consolidated totals
are summarized below.

Eliminations
(In millions) L1 1988 19K7
Staterront of Eamings
Sales of goods $ (2 8 5 8 -
Sales of services (20} (26) (8)
Other incume (i4) (5) 6
Earnings of GEFS (927) 788) (552)
GLFS revenues from
operations (48) (34) (29)
Total revenues (1,021) (B58) (583)
Cost of goods sold (12) (5 se
Cost of services sold (20) (26) (3)
Interest and other financal
charges 47) (29) (10)
CGther costs and expenses (15) (10) (13)
Total costs and expenses {94) (70) (31)
Earmings belore income
taxes, extraordinary item
and cumulative effect of
accounung changes (927) (788) (552)
Extraordinary wem — — 62
Income tax accounting
change — — (518)
Net earnings $ (C27) § (788) $(1,008)
=== I ===
Statement of Financial Position
GE curren’ receivables $ (242) § (330
GEFS financing recetvables - (107)
Other GEFS receivables (380) (107)
Investment in GEFS 6069) (4819
Total assets 6,691) Q‘S.SBS)
Short-term borrowings $ (2%) $ (170)
Accounts payable (379) (264)
Long-term borrowings (2) (110)
All other liabilives (5) —_
Total liabiliues (622) (544)
G FS equity (6,069) (4.319)
Total liabilives and equity ~ $(6.691) $(5.563)
Statement of Cash Flows
Net earnings (operating
acuvities) $ @221 § ((13) §$ @213
Investng acuvites 179 (171) 243
Financing activities 2 184 (30)

s g W N
Resuits of companies in which GE or GEFS owns
between 20% and 50% (“associated companies”) are
included in the financial staterents on a “one-line” basis.
Cash flows. During 1989, the definition of “cash and equiv-
alents” for GE except GEFS was modified to exclude mar-
ketable securities having onginal maturities between 90

e

and 365 days. GEFS' cash and equivalents, which includes
only cash and very short-term (only a few dayvs’ matuntes),
1s not affected by this modificaton.

Pensions and other retirement benefits. \ccounting pohicies
for pensions and other retirement benefits are discussed in
note 6.

Income taxes. SFAS No. % — “Accounting for Income
Taxes" was issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in December 1987, A requirement ot SFAS No. 96
is theit deferred tax liabilines or assets at the end of each
perioc’ be determined using e tax cate expected to be in
eftect when taxes are actually paid or recovered. Accord-
ingly, under SFAS No. 96 rules, income tax expense provi-
sions will increase or decrease in the same penod in which
a change in tax rates is enacted. Previous rules required
providing deferred taxes using rates in effect when whe tax
asset or hability was first recor «d without subsequent
adjustment solely fort «ro changes (except with respect
1o leveraged leses).

In contormuty wirls e/ 5 No. 96 transition 1 ules, the
Company elected to ado « the new income tax accounting
during 1987. The cumiwuve effect 1o January |, 1987
($577 million, includ’ 1g $518 mulion for GEFS) of the
cha . ¢ is shown in * 1e 1987 columns of the Statement of
Earmungs.

GE sccounting policies
Sales. A sale is recorded when title passes to the customer

or when services are performed in acco~dance with
contracts.

Investment tax credit (ITC). The I'TC was repeaed, with
some transitional exceptions, effective Januar ¢ 1, 1986,
However, for financial reporting purposes, GE has
deferred recognition of the ITC each vear and continues
to amortize I'TC as a reduction of the provision for income
taxes over the lives of the facilities 1o which the credit
apphies.

Inventories. 1'he values of most inventories are determined
on a last-in first out, or LIFO, basis 2.« do not exceed
realizable values. Effective Januar 1, 1987, GE changed
its accounting procedures to include in inventor certain
manufacturing averhead cests previously charged directly
tu expense. The more significant types of manufacturing
overhead included .n inventory as a result of the change
are: depreciation of plant and equipment; pension and
other benefits of manutacturing employees; and certain
product-related engineering expenses. The Company
believes this change was preferable because it provides a
better matching of production cost: with related revenues



ring operating results. 1 ance with gene

eed accounung prinapiles, the cumulative
hange {or penods prior to January 1, 148

($281 milkon after providing for taxes o1 $215 millior | 1s
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page 26. There was virtually no effect frem thus change on

X7 results atter recording th mula e eflect

Depreciation, depletion and amortuation. |he cos
L At N CQUIDITK 18 deprecia

an accelerated method based primartly on ¢

airs chigits tormula. It manufa

nent i L 14 )y

obsolescence, additonal depreca 1 1S providedd

GEFS accounting policies

Methods of rc ording revenues (“earned income”). In
Il loans s earmed on the interest method. For loan
harges are precomputed
harges are delerred at the ume of contract ac qui
siuon. For loan contracts | Naance charges are not
precomputed but are bilica to custom INCOMe 15
recorded when earned. Accrual of interest income s sus
pended when collection of an account becomes doubiful
generally atter the account becomes 90 days delinquent
Financing lease income that includes related invesument
tax creciits and residual values s recorded on the interest
methaod so as to produce a level vield on funds not vet
recovered. Unguaranteed residual values included in lease
ome are based primanly on independent apprasals of
the values of leased assets remaining at expirauon of the
lease terms
ungination, commitment and other nonretundable fees
related to fundiny s are deferred and recorded in earmned
income on the interesi method. Coinmitmend fees related
to loans not expected to be funded and line-of credit fees
are deferred and recorded i earned income on a straigh
line basis over the pernod to which the fees relate. Syndica
won tees are recorded 1n earmmed income at the time the

related services are performed unless significant contin

Kidder, Peabody's propnietary securities and commaoxdi
ues transactic.1s are recorded on a trade-date oasis. Trad
ing . ad investment securities are valued at market or
estumated fair value. Unrealized 2ains and losses or per
contractual commitments, prirg ipally inanaal futures
when-ssued secuntes and forward contracts on U.S. goy
ermnment and tederal agency securiues, are reflected in the
Statement of Earmings on a trade-date basis. Customers
tansacuons and the related revenues and eXpenses are
reflected in the hinancial statements on a settdeny it-date

hasis. Revenues and expenses on a trade-date basis are not

matena iy diiie Invesunent banking revenues fron
management lees, sales concessions and underwriung fees
are recorded on settdement date. Advisory [ee revenue is

recorded when services are substantially complzted and
)
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e “insurance athhates™ on page 49 for information

with respect 1o eammed income of these businesses

Allowance for losses on financing receivables. G F ( apial
maintains an allowance tor losses on hinancng recemvables
at an amount that it beheves s suthaent o provide ade
quate protecuion against future losses in the portfolio. For
small-balance and certam large-balance receivables. the
clowance for losses 1s determined pninapally on the basis
of actual expenence dunng the ;HHMLHL three vears
Further allovances also ave provided to reflect manage
ment’s judgment of additional loss potential. For other
recevaoles, principaliy the larger loans and leases, the
allowance tor losses s determined primarily on the basis of
management’s judgment of net loss pot al, includirg
specthe allowances for known trouble ' accounts

All accounts o1 poruons thereof deemed 10 be uncollect
ible or require an excessive Coutectzon unst ¢ wnitien
oft to the allowance for los Smail-balance accoints are
Progressively wrntien dow . (trom 10% wnen more than
three months delinquent to 100% when more than 12
months delinquent) to record the balances at esumated
realizable value, However, if at any ume curing that PETIK
an account 1s judged to be uncollectble, such as in the cax

of a bankruptey, the remaming balance 1s written off

Larger !

alance accounts are reviewed at least quarterly
and those accounts that are more than three months delin
ouent are wntten down, if necessary. 1o record the bal

ances at esumated H‘d]h.(tli' value

Marketable securities. Marketable secunt. . of Kidder
Peabody are carmed at market value with the difference
between cost and market value included in operatons
Marketable debt secuniues held by all other GETS affiliates
are camed at amortized cost. Marketable equity secunties
of mnsurance affiliates are carned at market value, and
unrealized gains or losses, less applicable deferred income

faxes, are H‘\\!KH'.I("’ mn equity

Securities purcaased under a: re ents to resell (reverse
repurchase agreements) and securities sold under agree-
ments i repurchase (repurchase agreements). Repurchase
and reverse repurchase agreements are treated as financ
ing transacuons and are carmed at the contract amount at
which the securities subsequently will be resold or reac
quirec Repurchase agreements relate either to market-
able securiues, which are carried at market value, or to
securities obtained pursuant to reverse repurchase agree

ments. It is GEFS' policy to take §

POSSESSI0N O, secunues

subject to reverse renurchase agreements. GEFS monitors
the market value of the underiving secunities in relation to
the related receivable, including acrrued interest, and

requests additional collateral if appropriate




Depreciation and amortization. The ca equipment
leased to others on operaung leases 1s amoruz ' prina-
pally or: a straight-line basis, to estimated net salvage value
over the lease term or over the estimated economie life of
the equipment. Depreciation of property and equipment
for GEFS own use is recorded on either a sum-of-the-
yvears digits or a straight-line bas s over the lives of the
assets,

Investment tax credut (ITC). I'TC associated with equipment
on operating leases and with buildings and equipment is
deterred and amortuzed over the lives of the underhving
assets.

Insurance affiliates. Premiums on short-duration insu, -
ance contracts are reported as earned income over the
terms of the related reinsurance treaties or insurance poli-
aes. In general, earned premiurm; are calculated on a pro-
rata basis or are determined based on reports received
from reinsureds. Premium adjustments under retrospec-
uvely rated reinsurance contracts are recorded based on
estimated losses and loss expenses, including both case and
incurred-but-not-reported (IBNR) reserves. Revenues on
long-duration contracts are reported as earned when due.

Deferred insurance acquisition costs are amortized as
the related pre:niums are earned for property and casualty
business. Deferred insurance acquisition costs for the lite
insurance business are amoruzed over the premium-
paying periods of the contracts in propot won either o
anucipated premium income or to gross profit, as anpro-
priate. Deferred insurance acquisition costs are reviewed
cor recoverability, and for short-duration contracts, anuci-
pated invesument income is considered in making recover-
abtlity evaluations.

The estimated Lability for outstanding losses and loss
expenses consists of case reserves based on reports and
estimates of losses and an IBNR reserve based pr - arily
on expenence. Where »xpenence s not suthaent, indus-
try averages for the particular insurance r-ducts are
used. Estimateu amounts of salvage an’ - ogtion
recoverable on paid and unpaid losses are deducted from
outstanding losses. The liability for future policy benefits
of the life insurance affiliates has been computed mainly
by 2 net-level-premium method based on assumpti_ns for
investment yields, mortality and terminations that were
appropnate at date of purchase or at the time the policies
were developed, including provisions for adverse
deviations.

e W e e ~ -
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Note 2 Acquis s and Related Matters
GE
Although there were a number of acquisitions and disposi-

tons duning 1989, the larger transactions involved com-
pletion of arrangements for several joint ventures. These
included the combiming of interests in European appli-
ances and electnical controls with General Electne ple,
(GEC), an unrelated corporaton in the U nited Kingdom
(GE also acquired GEC's medical systems sales and service
in the United Kingdom ) Besides the businesses and
resources contributed by the parties in these transactons,
GE paid cash of $570 milion to GEC in the second quarter
of 1789, Other new joint ventures included an arrange-
ment with Enicsson of Sweden (mobile communicauons
businesses). Legal form and percentage owne_shios in
the : alliaiices va-y.

During 1988, C E completed a number of acquisitions.
The largest of these were:

Roper Corporation, acquired in Apri! for $507 million
cash. Roper’s prinaipal businesses were the manufacture
and sale of gas and electiw ranges and outdoor power gar-
den equipment. In December, GE old Roper's garden
equipment business for $295 million cash. Roper’s kitchen
apphance business prior to acquisivon had annual sales of
about $375 million.

Borg-Warner's chemicals businesses, acquired in Sep-
tember for $2.3 billion <ash. These businesses (annuai
sales of aboirt $1.6 bilion prior to acquisition) manutac-
ture and sell products conplementary to GE's plastics
businesses.

Both of these acquisitions were accounted for a. pur-
chases with the excess of purchase price over the esumate
of fair values of net assets acquired recorded as goodwill.
See note 19.

Business dispositions during 1988 included most of the
GE Solid State (semiconductor) business; seven of NBC's
eight radw - staton.; RCA Global Communications, Inc.

4 provid=r of internatonal communications services); and
Sadelmi-Cogept, a forewn construction firm. Cash pro-
ceed: from these transacuons aggregated about $700 mil-
lion. Aggregate annual sales of these businesses were
about $900 million.

Om December 31, 1987, GE and a French electronics
company, Thomson, S.A., completed a transactior n
which GE acquired Thomson's medical equipment busi-
ness (CGR) and Thomson acquired most of GE's consumer
electronics business. The total transaction included cash
received by GE of about $560 milhon. CGR's 1987 sales of

4y




St $800 milbon came manly fr - shgal x-ray, mam-
wwography, computed tomography, ultrasound, and
related sales and service in Europe and Latin Amernica.
GE's consumer electronics business included mamly GE
and RCA brand telesision sets, VORs and audio products
with sales of about $3 bilhon annually, GE will continue for
some time 1o 1aceve rovalty income from patents related
o consumet electromics products. Other related dosings,
princpally for offshore consumer electronics operations,
took place in 1955,

Also duning 1987, activiies involving a “new products”
division and NBCs radio networks were sold for cash
aggregatng abouat 0 miilion and' a note for $3 million
In addivon, CE donated RCA's David Samoff Research
Center to a not-for-profit organization in 1967,

There was no matenial effect on GE's operaung results
or finan.cal positon: {rom the above transactions in the
year when they occurred

GEFS

During 1989, GE Capital acquired for $407 million cash
the remaining 62% of the common stock it had not previ-
ously owned in FGIC Corporauon (FGIC), a company
principally engaged in provding financial guarantee
nsurance on selected secunues. FGIC, which had annual
revenues prior 1o acquisition of about $125 milion, 1s now
consohdated with GE Capital. The aggregate effect of this
acquisttion and a number of asset acquisiuions from other
financial services businesses during 1989 was not material
in June 1988, as part of the management-led acquisition
of Montgomery Wa-d & Co., Incorporated (Montgomery
Ward) from Mobil Corporauon, GE Capital acquired
Montgomery Ward's credit operations compnsing Mon:-
gomery Ward Credit Corporation (MW Credit) and certain
related - ssets (collectively with MW Credit, MW Credit
Operations) for a cash purchase price of $7 18 mithon.
GE Capital and Kidder, Peabody acquired 40% and 10%,
respectively, of Montgomery Ward's rommon stock for a
cash purchase price of $4 million and $1 million, respec-
tively. In additon, GE Capital and hidder, Peabody paid
cash of $82 million and $8 million, respecuvely, for pre-
ferred stock in Montgomery Ward. The manageinent-led
acquisiion of Montgomery Ward was partally financed
by GE Capital in the form of a $275 million subord:inated
loan.

The acquisition of the MW Credit Operations was
accounted for as a purchase, and, accordingly, the pur-
chase price was allocated to the assets and liabilives of MW
Credit Operations based on esumates of fair value. The
excess purchase price over estir ated fair value of net
assets acquired (goodwil!) is being amoruzed oa a straight-
line »=is over 20 years.

1f the preced transacuons had occurred on Jan-
uary 1, 1988 or Januar 1, 1987, management estimates
that GEFS results of opacrations for the vears ended
December 31, 1985 and 1987 would have been as follows.

(n mulbons) 1985 1987
Revenues $10,8RO $8.702
Earmings belote extaordinarny neia

and cumulatve effect of change in

accounung principle T84 AL
Net earnings T84 1,085

The above unaudited pro forma . formation has ben
prepared based on assumptions that management deerms
appropriate, but the results are not necessarily indicauve of
those that might have occurred had the acquisitions taken
place at the beginnings of the respective years. The resulis
of MW Credit Operations have been consohdated with
GEFS since the date of acquisivon. There would not have
been any significant pro forma effect on vonsolidated net
earmings per share from this transaction.

In July and December 1987, GE Canual acquired the
outstanding “apital stock of D&K Financ | Corporation
(DAK) and Gelco Corporation (Geleo), respectively, for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $535 million
Both entiues are in *'.« business of leasing vehucle fieets
a o other | upment. The acquisitions were accounted for
as purchases. Results of operatons of the acquired corpo-
rations have been included in GE Capital since their
respective dates of acquisition and are not mat *nal.

umj GE Other Income

Other income of GE except GFFS is summarizea in the
table below.

(In milkons) 1989 1988 1987
Royalty and techmical

agreements $359 $359 $283
Marketable securities and bank

deposits 106 155 133
Assocuated companies 14 62 61
Customer financing 30 38 52
Orther investments

Interest 1l ] 15

Dividends 2 8 4
Other sundry ntems 182 _45 _ol

°
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Note 4 GEFS Revenues from ( rations

TR ale
$484 millio

Note 5 Supplemental Cost Details (excluding unusual e-penses)

\.1}!{«5!‘![0{‘14!.\‘\-"' i(".ui\ﬂt"' sHhowt
Supplemental cost details
in milbons

Employvee compensation, including
SOoOal Secunity taxes and other
Denenis

>eiiing . general and admimstrat
l\‘.l"\{

Company-tunded research and
development

Mamtenar ce and repairs

Rental expense

Adverusing

[axes. excent nay

Laxes

Total emplovee compensator

$796 mullion in 1987




MNote 6 Pensions and Othe stirea Bonefits HUTE SETVICC | ol emiplovees Prior-service cost for

chianges in pension benefits that are allocable to previous

the same manae:

1SKON plans

1€ 0f future benehits and the
return on plan assets. The

Emplover costs
!

[ U8K reco
ment pertd noee. e 1l COstLs

lan design changes in 1985, For example

. emplovee contrbutions no longte

reduce pension costs because such conuib ‘tions are used

to provide additonal per 5. Detatls of cost for

the D

nt { {
Calil civiaiia
Cost for principal pension plans

iancial posiuon
he
imateih f GEFS

benchts are based on the greater of ontrbubion

ATECT carmings or a to flt“-"""’k l!b‘{'r"\,vu-.ln’
bligation
Vice andd hina C earu M olhigau
Recognized retut
he GE Pension -
NETL amortzation

Nt r
NOL PDENSION

NEMHOYEees wilt

R T vesien

Detanls of retur w1 PAAN assets
assets $4026 $2261 $1

\ aloil Recogmzed n plan assets [ 4) (1460

e bhenehits and approximately

The Supplementary Plan is an unfunded plan | ding Unrecogniz plan assets § 2452 § 80| $

suppiementary reurement benefits primaniy to gher

iwevel longer VICe 1T ager nt and protessiong: ‘J‘\"L"lu’!'(t return on plan assets s determined by
employvees in t 1 Sta At the end of 1989, abou appiying the expected long-term rate of return to the ma
4O emnle this plan, and about ket-related value of assets

|
€re receiving benent {
. saaidati NS Fundug policy for the GE Plan 1s to contmbute amounts

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SVYAS) No. 8 suthaent to meet mumimum funding requirements set

it cost method t torth in US. employee benefit and tax laws plus such add;

IZALION andc plan cost donal amounts as GE mav determine o be appropnate
s the actuanal § { trom ume to ume. GE made no contribution for 1989 and

cted future beneh 1485 because the funding status of the GF Plan precluded
mvice to date. The beneh current tax deductuon and a contribution would have gen
s the portion of the projected b Tated an exc e tax

uted to emplovee service dunng ['he funding status of an ongoing plan may be meas
method recognizes the effect of future ured by companng the market-related value ol assets witt
projecting the futurc benefits the projected benefit obligation. The market-related valuc
stablishes a "transition {

gain ot assets 1s based on amortized cost plus recognituon of

I, 1986 (when the Company marke reciauon and depreciat n in the portfolio over

the current {air market value of five vears. GE believes the market-relared value of assets is
{

ected beneht obligation a more realisuc measure than current fair market value




because the market-related value re !u( e impact of
short-term mar ket flucteations, The funaing status for the
principal pension plans follows.

Fu~ing status for principal pension plans
December 31 (In mithons) 1989 1988

Market-related value of assets 20,794 $19.308
« rojected benefit obligation 16,057 15473

A schedule reconciling the projected benefit obligation
tor pnncipal pension plans with GE's recorded pension
liability 18 shown below.

Reconciliation of projected benefit obligation with pension
liability for princips! persion olane

December 31 (In millions) 1989 10K 4

Projected benehit obligat on $16.057 $15473
Lass crrent fair market value of trust assets  (24.211) (21,502)

Uarec.gnized SFAS No. 87 iransitton gain 1,693 1,847
rther unrecognized net expenence gains 5353 3308
Unrevognized pnor-service cost 90 114
Recorded prepaid pension assets 1469 1,177
Recorded pension liability $ 4318 412

= ===

The portion of the pmjected benefit obligatuon repre-
senting the accumulated benefit obligaton amounted 10
$14,940 million and $14.073 million at the ends of 1959
and 1588, respectively. Th_ vested benefit obligation was
$14,721 million and $13,895 million at the ends of 1989
and 1958, respectively. These amounts are based on com-
pensaton and service to date.

Trust assets consist mainly of common stock and fixed
income investments. Trust assets included GE common
stock valued at $201 miliion at year-end 1989 ($139 mul-
lion at year-end 1988) mainly held in connection with an
indexed portfolio.

Orher unrecognized net experience gains resulted prin-
apally from favorable investmen. performance.

Principal retiree health care 2nd life insurance plans

GE and its affiliates sponsor a numbicr of plans providing
retiree health care and life insurance benefits. GE's aggre-
gate cost for the pnnapal plans, which cover substanually
all employees in the United States, was $283 million in
1989, $302 million in 1988 and $278 million in 1987.

Generally, empioyees who retire after qualifying for
opuonal early retrem:=.it under the GE Plan are elijibie 10
particaipate in retiree health care and life insurance plans.
Healih care benefits for eligible retirees under age 65 and
eligible dependents are included in costs as covered
expenses are actually incurred. For eligible reurees an.
spouses over age 65, the present value of tuiare health
care benefits is funded or accrued and s included in
costs in the year the retiree becomes eligible for benefits.
The present value of future life insurance benefits for eh-
gibie vetirees is fundled and is included in costs in the year
of retrement.

Most retirees outside the United States are covered

by government health care programs, and GE's cost is
ok significans..
oo
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Note 7 Interas  .d Other Financiai Charges

GE. Interest capitalized, principally on major property,
plant and equipment projects, was $458 mulhion in 1989,
$11 million in 1988 and $23 million in 193,

GEFS. GEFS interest and discount expense repornted in the
Statenent of Earmings s net ol interest income on tempo-
rary investments of excess funds (3160 million, $285 mil-
hon and $165 million in 1989, 1988 and 1987, respectively)
and capitalized interest of $13 million, $16 million and

$4 milion, respecuvely, for 1989, 1988 and 1987.

Note 8 GEFS Allowance for Losses on
Financing Receivables

GEFS allowan. e for losses on financing receivables repre-
sented 2.63% of total financing receivables at both vear-
ends 1989 and 1988, The table below shows the acuvity in
the allowance for losses on hinanang receivebles during
each of the last three years.

(In milhons) 1989 1UNN 1987
Balance at January | $ 972 $743% $608
Additons charged to operations 527 434 200
Net transters relatea to companies
acquired and sold 48 89 21
Amounts written off (4200 (29490 (171
Balance at December 31 $1.127 $972 § 743
=== === R

Amounts written off in 1989 were approximately
1.98% cf average finanaing recewables outstanding dunng
the year, comnared with 0.51% and 0.62% of average
financng rece.vables outstanding duning 1988 and
1987, respecuvely.

No. o 9 Unusual Expen ses

GE. Unusual experses in 1987 were provisions tor corpo-
rate restructurings. These were for the expenses of refo-
cusing a wide vaiiety of brsiness and markeung activities
and reducing foreign and domestic risk exposures. These
provisions included costs of rationalizing and improving a
large number of production facilities; rearvanging produc-
ton acuvites among a number of exisung plants; and
reorganizing, phasing ou’ or otherwise concluding other
activities no longer considered essential 1o the conduct of
the Company™ business.

GEFS. GEFS unusuai expenses in 1987 included arnounts
related to insider trading chaiges and busiess restructur-
ing activities of Kidder, Peabody,
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Note lu Provision for inc @ Taxes (excluding i 887 extreordine

changes in accounting principles) -

Provision for income taxes 1489 1988 1987
(In millions) Gl GEFS fowl Gl GLEFS Lowl (#13 (-l.}b“ Towl
Estimated amounts payable

(recoverable) $1875 § 48 $1423 $1.311 8 (32) $1.279 $1.246 § (212) $1.084
Deterved tax ev) se (thenefit)

lecans ey =vany differences’ 242 144 k6 (152) 274 122 (71 23] 160
Investment credit deferred

(amortized! — nel (64 19 (45) (63) (3) (66) (K7) 1 (86,

$1.558 $ 211 $1.764
Srmes  Emmms prmmmm

!I.U‘Xi $ 239 ?l.SS.‘j !!.(W g 20 !l.lud

“Esumated amounts payable” includes amounts apphca-
ble to toreign jurisdictions of $272 million, $344 million
and $197 m.dlion in 1989, 1985 and 1987, respectvely.

General Electric Company files a consolidated US. ted-
eral income tax return that includes GEFS. GEFS' prowi-
sion for esumated taxes recoverable (payable) includes its
effect on the consohdated tax return. The amount reported
by GEFS has been reduced 1o rhe extent of consolidated
investment tax credit carrviorwards of $168 million at
December 31, 1987, investment tax credit carryiorwards
of $168 millior, and $107 million realized in 198, and
1987 espectively, were reflected as reinstatements of
deferred tax balances.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of “temporary
differences” between the amount of assets and habilities
for financiai eporung purposes and such amounts as
measured by tax laws and regulations. See note 27 for
details of the balances in deferred income taxes at the ends
of 1989 and 1988

The US. invesument tax credit (ITC) vas repe;  «d, with
some transiuonal excepuons, effective January 1, 1986.
However, because of its use of the deierral method of
accounung for the I'TC, GE has an unamortized balance
remaining. As a result of the accounting change in 1987,
unamortized I'TC is treated as a temporary difference for
deferred tux accountiug. GE' remaining unamortized 1TC
balance was $112 million, net of deferred t2x at year-end
1989, and will be added to income in future years.

The 'S federal statutory tax rate on corporations was
34% in 1989 and 1988, down from 40% in 1987, Data
about “effective tax rates,” 1.e., provision for inconw t xes
as a percentage of eammings before income taxes, extraordi-
nary item and cumulatve effect of accounting changes,
follow.

Euﬂnmum(hdmmmmmm
effact of accounting changes)

1989 1988 1987
GE 283% 24.5% 33.9%
GEFS 18.6 23.3 35
Consohdated 309 28.3 343

A reconailiation from the consolidated provision for
income taxes that would have resulied using the U S
federal statutory rate to the actual provision is shown
below.

Differences between expected U.S. federal statutory

tax-rate provision and actual tax provision
(In milhons) 1989

Expected consolidated rax
Provision at “tatutory ates
Increase (reduction) in taa s
resulting from GE
Indusion of GEFS earnings
(before extraordinary em and
cumulative effect of accounung
change in 1987) in before-tax

1988 1987

$1939 $1605 $129]

ncome on an ~fter-ax basis (315) (268) (221)
Varying tax rates of cther
affiliates (prinapally foreign) (60) (76, (117)
Amortizaton of invesunent tax
credit (64) (70) (88)
Current-year effect of income tax
accounting change - - 138
All other — net 125 (14) 9%
(314) (428)  (195)
Increase (reduction) in taxes
resutting from GEFS
Amortization of investment tax
credit on finanang and
operaung leases (22) a7n (27)
Dividends received which are not
fully taxabie (27) a7 (18)
Income from tax-exempt
marketable securiues (asy (04 (112
Income taxes at capital gains rate - — (14)
Adjustment of tax-deductiblie
claim reserves of insurance
affiliates 210 (22) -~
Uhange in tax-rate assumptions
for leases (23) (14) (31)
All other — net 48 64 ('2)
(176) (110) (209)
Elhmimnauons 815 268 221
Actual consohidated tax provision $1.764 %1835 !I.lw
——— 4

Provision has been made for substantially all U.S. fed-
eral income tax uabilities applicable to undistributed earn-
mgs of affiliates and associated companies.

Apmnnlm.ﬂmd p—
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Based on the locaton (not tax junisdt 1) of the busi-
ness providing goods or services, consohaated domesuc
income before taxes, extraordinary item and cumulative
effect of changes in accountng principles was $4,930 mil-
lion in 1989, $3.936 mullion in 1988 and $2.7 10 million in

1987, The corresponding amounts for foreign-based oper-

ations were $773 million, $785 milbon and $517 million in
each of those vears, respectvely

Depasits restricted as 1o usage and withdrawal or used as
parual compensation for short-term borrowing arrange-
ments were not material for either GE except GEFS or
GEFS. See note 21 for related information about credit
lines and compensating balances.

Note 12 Marketable Securities Carried st
Cost

(arrying value of marketable secunities for GE except
GEFS was substanually the same as market value at vear-
ends 1989 and 1988. Market value of GEFS' securities
carmed at amortized cost was $6,952 million and $5,537
million at December 31, 1989 and 1988, respectively.

&t Market
December 31 (In millions) 1989 1988
US government and federal agency
securties $4.399 $2,438
State and muniapal securities 191 215
Corporate stocks, bonds and foreign
securities 3.898 2,441
$5 484 $5.089
s ==

At December 31, 1989, the carrying value of equity
securives carmied at market value included unrealized
gains and unrealized losses of approximately $32 million
and $37 million, respectively.

A significant portion of securities carmied at market
value at December 31, 1989 was pledged as collateral for
bank loans and repurchase agreements.

VST

e

Note 1 4 GEC  ntReceivables
December 31 (1n millions) 1084 | ORR
Rec=ivable from:
Customers $5.208 $5.299
Associated companies 190 160
(Others 1 897 | 857
~ 385 7.506
Less allowance for losses _(67) __(196)
$7.218 7.110
Note 1 5 GE Inventories
December 31 (In millions) 1989 198X
Raw materials and work in process $5492  $5603
Finished goods 3,103 2,863
Unbilled shipments 249 246
K. 544 8712
Less revaluation 1o LIFO A2.189) (2,226)
LIFO value of inventories $ 605 $ 64586
=== = 3

LIFO revaluations decreased $37 millon in 1989 com-
pared with an increase of $150 million in 1988, LIFO
revaluations increased $324 million in 1987, mostly related
to the accounting change described in note 1. Included in
these changes were decreases of $68 million, $23 million
and $22 million (1989, 1988 and 1987, respect vely) due to
lower inventory levels. In each of the last three vears, there
was a current-year expense for price increases.
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December 31 (In madlons ]

Time sales and loans

Retatler and auto hnancing
(l‘ " () 5 . 5 1t
Commeraal and industnal loans
Equinment s les hnancang
Home and re
(her

reation e

Deterved incorme

Investment in financing leeses

Direct fina.x INE leases

Leveraged leases

Less allowance for losses

“Time sales and loans” re Presents transaciicns in @ var
ety of forms, including ume sales, revolving charge and
credit, mongages, installmont loans. interme. tiate-term
loans, and revolving loans secured by business assets and
mandatonly redeemable preferred stock. The portfoho
includes ume sales ana loans camed at the pring ipal
amount on which tinance charges are billed periodically

and ume sales and loans acquired on a discount basis car
{

Investment in financing icases

December 31 (1

mulhons

T'otal minimum lease payments recetvable
Less principal and interest on third-party nonrecot
debt

Rentals receivable

Esumated unguaranteed residual value of leased assets
Less deterred incovne (a

Investment in financing leases (as shown above
Less amounts 1o arrive at net investment
Allowance for losses
Deferred taxes ansing from finanang leases

Net investment in financing leases

(a) Total finanang lease aeferre © ncome s net of deferred iniual dir

$12.009

nnancng .cases

1 ORY

t costs of $37 mulbon and $33 million for

Note 1 6 GEFS Financing  :eivables (investment in time saies, | » and financing leases)

med at gross book value, vhich includes finance charges

“Fmanang leases” consists of direct hinanang and lever
aged leases of aircraft, railroad rolling stock. automobiles
and other transportation equipment, data processing
equipment, 1 et .l‘ui,.;;»:;n niL, and other manulactunrnng
power generation, miring and commeraal equipment and
raciities

As e

and as the ex PATICiDAant in everagex! icases,

sole owner of ascets under direct inancng leases

EES

taxad on wota ervea and s entited 10 tax

PAVITICIILS Tex
deductions based «
deduct s for
(v} ’ \‘ql,.

on ieased e npment and t

i the cost of leased ~ssets and tax

nterest paid to third-pany paruapants

s enuded generaliv 1o any investment tax credit

yany ressdual value of leased
ASSOLS
Investments in direct financing and leveraged leases

{

represent unpaid “entals and esumated

inguaranieed
residual values of leased equipm nt, less related deferred
income and prinapal and inierest on notes and other
mstruments represenung third pany peruapanon

Becaus= GEFS has no general obligauon on such notes
and other instruments representung third-party parucipa
uon, such notes and other instruments have not been
included in habiliues but have been offset against the
reiated rentals receivable. GEFS' share of rentals receivable
1s subordinate 1o the share of the other paruapants wh

also have a security interest in the leased equipment
b

Addinonal detail about investment in financing leases at December 81 1989 and 198K 15 shown below

Direct Tota
Leveraged

1 lcases nnanang leases

LONs 1984 | GRY

$11.444 $23.458 $20.854

7 ROR

198Y and 1988, respectively




Contractual matuntues of tume sale (

ntractusl maturitios

| \ ns

Time sales " nd loans
Retailer i nd auto finano
Lomme cclal real estate t
Commercial and industnal a
Equipment sales hnancing

Home and recreavon iinanang

Investment in financing leases
Dnrect hinancing leases

Leveraged leases

$4

Expenen-e has shown that a substantial portion o

i

recetvables il ™ paid prior to contractual maturt'y

Accordingly, the matuntes of time sales and loans

el Note 18 Property, Plent and Equipment

(including equipment leased to
others)

rentals receivable shown in the table above are no

regarded as forecasts of future cash collections

Note I 7 Other GEFS Receival.les from and o

Payables to Brokers and Dealers Original cost

GE
Included in ouer receivables and other liabilities of GEFS

ire amounts recervable rom and pavabie to brokers anxd
dealers in commection with Kidder, Peabody's normal trad
ng, lending and borrowing of securinies. At December 31

1989 and 1988, such amounts consisted of the fo!' 'wi

ng

December 31 (1n milhons

Inciuded in other receivables
Securtes taded 1o deliver
Deposits paud for secunties borrowed

Orher, principally clearing organizau

Inciuded in sther abilities
Secunties talled 1o recerve
Depoaits re-=ived for securiues

{ her ’),f"r‘,.;\\‘l‘\ learing

Accumulated depracistion, depletion and
amortization

GEFS
i

}
B




GEFS
Investment in associated con panx
inciud nces of $27°
A'n‘s" ¢ 111 LT
Miscella e
Broker-de:
a4 SCRTERA
and $4 n Deferred
Deceml 3 y | ‘Iv. The largest Gl i: . ,’
cal esta

roOdwill ar ey intanm S WeTre trom the k( A acquust (he

[

For Gl aggregate market value of marketable equity
teT D TOrle . - y
¥ penoa secunues, which are carned at cost, was $67 milhon and

y v ars "0 11
«U yeal $72 million at vear-ends 1489 ar

1988, respectively. Gross

gains and losses were $19 million and $6 mil

i GEFS' goodwill wa lized
1989 and

n of GEFS

.

respectively, at December 31, 1989

'he Nauonal Broadcasung Company (NB(
'|,' '

an athlate
capiauzes program costs (including nghts t«

> muhon at
L9885, respectively. The prinapal

broadcast ) whet paid or when a program s ready for

guisivons of FGI
Operauons: Kidder, Pea

uto aucuons r\"n»;“‘ FU01

broadcast, if earlier. These costs are amortized based upor

projecied revenues or expensed when a program is d
| !

ER(

Tecor 10 1 Ous

11 1S (eter

| Den o mon * > v 1 { 1 =
R : XIS, NONE More At vear-end 1989, NBC had approximately $1.7 biilion
commuuments Lo acquire broadcast matenal or the H;t?;i\

u

vears. GEFS other intangibles represent principally tt f
value ol insurance-in-torce related 1 ) ‘
asisonn preteprs to broadcas. television programs that require payments
! :
Casuaity reinsuraace business, which 1s being amoruzed or OVET Lthe NexXt SIX vears
JVET UK 4 1 o’ .
t . # ™

85 18IS OVer is esumat 1! ; v

il . L For GEFS miscellaneous mvestments ir !
bilhon and $64 | million at December 81, 1989 and | 98&
respecuved

i ems at esumated realizable values previ

hnancng recervables




Amount and everage rate at December 31

1989 1URN
(in milhons) Amoumt  Ratwe Amount  Rate
GE
Commercial paper $ 597 85% § -
Notes with trust
departments 318 82 387 85%
Affiliate bank borrowings
(principaliy foregn) 436 188 261 257
Current portion of
long-term borrowings 150 1,238
200 %
1,696 1,861
GEFS
Commercial paper 30452 880 24,591 9.82
Banks 2,702 K58 1,987 9.34
Current portion of
long-term berrowings 1,365 790
Notes with trust
departments 847 8.29 990 B4K
Passbooks and
mvesunent certificates 374 373
35,740 28,731
Ehminations (L.6) (170)

$37.200 $30.422

The average balance of short-term borrowings for GE
except GEFS, excluding the current portion of long-term
borrowings, was $2,284 million in 1989 compared with an
average balance of $1,416 million in 1958. (Except for
commeraal paper, the average balance is calculated by
averaging month-end balances for the vear; commeraal
vaper average borrowings are based on daily balances for
the year.) The maximum balances in these calculations
were $2,791 million at the end of June 1989 and $2 444
million at the end of September 1988 The average world-
wide effective interest rate for the year 1989 was 1 1% ; for
1988, it was 15%. These average rates represent total
short-term interest incurred divided by the average bal-
ance outstanding. Although the total unused credit avail-
able 10 GE through banks and commeraal credit markets
is not readily quantifiable, confirmed credit lines of about
$1.3 billion had been extended by 47 banks at vear-end
1939. Substanually all of these lines also are available for
use by GE Capital and GEFS in addition to their own

-~ .

RN

The average daily ! we of GEFS borrowings, exciud-
ing the current portion of long-term borrowings, was
$31.154 million in 1989 compared with $27 889 million
for 1988, The December 28, 1989 balar ce of $34,769 mil-
lion was the maximum balance in 1989, The December 5,
1988 balance of $30 385 million was the maximum bal-
ance in 1988, The average short-term interest rate, exclud-
ing the current portion of long-term debt, was 9. 44% ftor
1989, representing short-term interest expense divided by
the average daily balance, compared with 7.96% for 1988,

At December 31, 1989, GE Capital had established lines
of credit aggregating $13,445 million with 187 banks,
including $16,370 million of revolving credit agreements
with | 18 banks pursuant to which GE Capital has the nght
to bot.ow funds for perords exceeding one vear. In addi-
ton, at December 31, 1989, approximately $1,256 million
of GE's credit lines was available for use by GE Capital. A
total of $4.430 million of these lines also was available for
use by GE Financial Services. Dunng 1989, GEFS did not
borrow under any of these credit lines.

GEFS compensates banks for credit facilities in the form
of fees or a combination of balances and fees as agreed 10
with the bank.

At December 31, 1989, Kidder, Peabody had established
lines of credit aggregating $5,727 million, of which $3 862
million was available on an unsecured basis. Borrowings
from banks were primarily unsecured demand obligations,
at interest rates approximating broker call loan rates, to
finance inventones of securities and to facilitate the securi-
ties settlement process
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Note 2 Accounts Payal

December 31 (1n millions) funy 1 UN8

GE
Trade sccounts $2.606  $1493%4
Collected Loy the account of athers 195 180
Other (including associated compunies) 100 17
2901 21%
GEFS
Accounts and drals pavahle 4144 4132
Eliminations (379)  (264)
$6.666  $6.004
p—~——4 ===

Note 23 GEFS Securities Sold but Not Yet

Purchased, at Market
December 81 (In milhons) 1989 1988
US government and federal agency
securities $3.508 $1,660
Star> and mumapal securities 4 9
Corporate stocks, bonds and foreign
securities 578 519
090 $2 088
=y

Note 24 GE All Other Current Costs and
Expenses Accrued

At year-ends 1989 and 1988, this account included taxes
accrued of $1,521 million and $1,568 million, respectively,
and compensation and benefit accruals of $948 million and
$982 million, respectively. Also included are amounts for
product warranties, estimated costs on shipments billed 1o
customers and a wide vanety of other sundry items.

Note D5 | yTerm Borrowings

December 81 (In millions) 1984 1988
GE $ S47 § 43%0
GEFS 12.165 10862
Ehnunatons !2 ) (i

$16.110 §15.082

Outstanding balances in long-term borrowings for GE
at Decemnber 31, 1989 and 1985 are as follows

Weighted
December 31 average
(In millions) interest rate Maturities 1989 1948
Notes 697% 1991-1992 $1.056 $1,168
Extendible notes (a) 7.69  1998.2006 600 RO
Debentures sinking
fund debentures 8438 1992.2016 518 545
Foreign currency
notes (b) 8.14  1992.1993 900 9«00
Deep discount
notes (¢) 751 1993-199%4 350 350
Industrial development/
uon control
nds 617 19912019 236 262
Other d) 202 310

2.947 3380

(a) GE will reset interest rates at end of inival and each subsequent
interest period. At each rate-rese( date, notes are redeemable
in whole or in part £t GE's option or repayable at opuon of the
holders at face value plus accrued interest. Current interest
periods range from May 1, 1991 10 April 8, 1993 Notes are in-
cluded in the current porton o long-term debt when the
interesi-rate-reset date is within one year

(b) In connection with a European Currency Unit 150 million
note issue (7%% coupon rate) due in 1992, GE entered ino a
currency and interest-rate swap agreement under which GE
assumes a fixed Japanese yen hability (22,262 millwon) for pay-
ment of principal in 1992 and Evs INtErest In yen al & rate some-
what below the six-month ven LIBOR.

A Euro-yen 35 billion note ssue due in 1993 s lo US §194
milhion at a hxed exchange rate of yen 18041 = US§1.00

In connection with a US $500 million note issue (9'4% coupon
rate) due in 1993, GE entered into currency and interest-rate
swap agreements under which GE assumes a fixed Dutch guiider
habihity (632 million) and a fixed German mark liability (873
million) for pavment of principal in 1993. GE pays interest in the
respective currencies at somewhat below the respective currency
three-month LIBOR

(©) Including amoruzauon of original issue discount, the effecuve
interest rates are: 4'4% Euro-dollar notes (US $200 million) -
741%, 2%4% US dollar notes ($150 million) - 7 66%.

(d) "Other” includes original issue premium and discounts and a
variety of borrowings by affiliates and parent cm;snznu with
various interest rates and matunues. Through 1988, “other" also
included an adjustment to bring RCA borrowings at acquisivon
date to fair market value. Such ECA borrowings have now all
been retred

Long-term borrowing matunties during the next five
years, including the portion classified as current, are
$150 million in 1990, $861 million in 1991, $442 million in
1992, $982 million in 1993 and $179 million in 1994,
These amounts are after deducting debentures that have
been reacquired for sinking-fund needs



Note 76 GE A ther Liabilities
e
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Note DG Share Owners'| ity

Gi. preferred stock up to 50,000,000 shares ($1.00 par
value) is authorized, but no such shares have been issued.
Authorized shares of common stack {par value $0 63) 1otal
1100, 0060 000

Shares of GE common stock

December 31 (In thousands) 19%9 198K 19K87

Issued 26,564 2o At 926,564

In treasury (21,783) (24.448) (23611

Outstanding U781 902116 902958
Snas  SSommmr | gmsssteem

GE share owners' equity is as follows

GE shere owners’ equity

(In mithons) 1989 1ORK 1987

Common stock “vued

Ralance at lanuary | $ 584 § 584 § 579

Adjustment for stock split - - 5

Balance at December 31 $ 584 $§ HR4 0§ 5R4
=== e —_

Other capital

Balance at January | $ R23 $ BIR 0§ %8

Adjustment for stock split -~ -_ (5)

Foreign currency translation

adjustments ) (39) 145

Unrealized gains (losses) on
secuniues held by insurance

afhliates 5 18 (33)
Gains (losses) on treasury stock
dispositions 2 (34) 80
Other - - 8
Balance at December 31 L& L__u.'z_g &
Retained sarmings
Balance at January | $17950 $15878 $14.172
Net earnin §.939 3.386 2915
Dividends declared _(1L537) (1314  (1,208)
Balance at December 31 22().352 !l 7,950 815878
Common stock heid in
treasury
Balance at January | $ 891 § 860 $§ 375
Purchases — net 362 387 846
Dispositions
Emplovee savings plans (124) (218) (148)
Stock options and
apprecianon nghs (212) (77) (96)
Emﬁﬁyyw stock ownership
n - (1 (39)
Dividend reinvestment and
share purchase 47) (49) (42)
Contribution to GE Penston
Trust - - (25)
Conversion of long-term
-— () (24)
Incentive compensation
plans 2 (5) 13
Balance at December 31

i B §

In November 1989, GE's Board of Directors authorized
the repurchase of up to $10 billion of Company common
stock over a five-vear period. This repurchase program
is designed to be fiexible. Shares will be acquired with
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funds fromaco.  Jation of borrowings and free cash
flow. Should world economic conditions, a major acquisi-
ton or other arcumstances warrant, the Company would
madify the pace and dimension of the repurchase pro-
gram to mamtain the sohdity of its fimancial position. As of
December 51, 1989, 3 765 thousand shares having an
aggregate cost of $236 million nad been repurchased
under the program and placed in treasury

In April 1987, GE sharc owners authorized (a) an
increase in the number of authorized shares of common
stock from 550,000,000 shares each with a par value of
$1.25 to i,100.000,000 shares each with a par value of
$0.63; (b) the split of each previously ssued common
share, including shares held in treasury, into two shares of
common stock each with a par value of $0.63, and (c) an
increase in the number of authornized shares of preferred
stock from 2,000,000 shares with a par value of $1.00 per
share to 50,000,000 shares with a par value of $1.00 per
share. All share data b2 . teen adjusted for this change.

The effects of trans\-ai g to US. dollars the financial
statements of foreign atfiliates whose functional currency
15 the local currency are included in other capital. Cumula-
uve foreign currency translation adjustments were
$133 milbon, $187 millk -+ .« $176 million of additions 1o
other capital at Decemixt 989 1988 and 1987,
respectively.

Stock option plans, appreciation nights and performance
units are described in the Company's current Proxy State-
ment. Requirements for stock option shares may be met
within cenain restrictions either from unissuz 4 or treasury
shares. During 1989, options were granted to 3,800 em-
ployees and 15 nonemployee Directors. As of December
31, 1989, a total of 456 individuals were eligible o recetve
class-grant options, and all exempt salaried employees
were eligible for special option grants. A totai of 4,633
persons held options exeraisable at the end of 1989 or in
the future.

Stock option information Average pe share
Shatussubject  Option  Market
(Shares in thousands) 0 option price price
Balance at January 1, 1989 19936 $36.41 $44.75
Options granted 5038 5719 57.19
Options exercised (3954) 2828 55.64
Opuons surrendered on
exerdise of appreciation
rights (712) %0.77 56.37
Opuons terminated (217) 4445 -—
Balance at December 31, 1989 20091 4334 6450

Outstanding options and rights expire and the award
period for outstanding performance units ends on various
dates from January 1, 1990 to December 15, 1999, Shares
available for granting additional options at the end of 1989
were 6,473,950 (11,956,568 at the end of 1988).



Nou3l Commitments and (  tingent
Liabilities

At Decembe~ 31, 1989, there were no known conungent
liabilities (including guarantees, pending litigation, taxes
and other claims) that, i the opinion of management,
wou be matena! in relation to General Electiic Company
and consohdated affiliates’ inancial position, nor were
there any matenal commiaents outside the normal
course of business.

Note 37 Supplementa: Cash Flows

“All other operating activities” in the Statement of Cash
Flows consists principally of adjustments to current and
noncurrent accruals of costs and expenses, amortization of
premium and discount on debt, and adjustments to assets
such as amortizauon of goodwill and intangibles.

Information about acquisitions and dispositions can be
found in note 2. The Statement of Cash Flows excludes
certain noncash transactions that had no significant effects
on the investing or finanang acuvities of GE or GEFS. The
transfer of GE Americom from GE to GEFS at the end of
1989 increased GEFS’ equity by $332 million.

Cash used in each of the last three years included:

“Net increase in G hnancing receivables” included.

(In milhons) 1989 198K 197

Increase in loans o

customers $24.699) $(28.731)  $(1K 9490
Principal collections from
customers 21,350 14 802 15,370

Investment in equipment

for inanang leases 4.766) (5,081) (3,117)
Prinaipal collections on

financing leases 3214 3974 2,291
Net change in credit card

receiva (1.641) (957) (181)

! (6.542) $ (5.94%) ! 4,627)

GEFS' “all other investing activities” included:

{In milhons) 19849 A2, ] 1987
Purchases of market~ble
securities by insurance
afhliates $(4.879)  S(31B8)  $(3.769)
Dispositions of marketable
securves by insurance
affiliates {81 2,3%4 2,624
Other __(403) (1,153) (137)
$ (B01) $2.007) $(1.282)
p—— -~ P b=

GEFS' "debt having maturities more than %0 days”
included:

(In milhons) 1989 1988 1987 (In milhons) 1989 [ELY] 1987
Interest (paid) Newly issued debt
GE $ (793) § (640) §$ (577) Short-term (91-365 davs) § 4571  § 54916  § 5546
GEFS (5,876) (4.030)  (3.301) Long-term senior 2,842 3,936 1,927
- " ' 5 Long-term subordinated - 5% -
‘ M) w) &ﬂ? Proceeds -~ nonrecourse,
lnc;:me um:s (paid) recovered leveraged lease debt 461 381 345
(federal, oreign, stine <
and local) aie AR LB
GE $(1.163)  $(1.284)  $(1,096) Repayments and other
GEFS (168) 251 403 retéuh;m s - .
Short-term (5.556) (6,220) (5,836)
g&) M) Lgf?g’ Long-term senior (230) (2,284) (526)
_ Long-term subordinated (7) (6) (20
“Net change in certain broker-dealer accounts” Principal pavments ~
included: honrecourse,
leveraged lease debt (253) (261) (263)
(1n millions) 1989 1988 1987 $(6046) $8771) §6.045)
Marketable securiues of
broker-dealer $(3.356) $(1.009) $1.826
Securites purchased under
agreements to resell (2.209) (922) 72
Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase 2,691 677 17
Securities sold but not yet
purchased 2.002 681 (2,118)
$ (872) § (573) § _(103)
. - -
W - -’*¢v‘.1 - —
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Note 33 industry Segme  setails )

Revenues
{In milhons) For the vears ended December 81
Towl revenues Intersegment revenues Fxternal revenues
1URYy 198s 1987 | URY 19RN 1987 1984 1ORK 1987
GE
Aerospace $ 5982 § 5343 § 5262 ) 77 § 166 § 78 $ 5205 $ 5177 § 5,184
Aircraft Engines 6,863 6481 6,773 (] 119 4% 6,794 6,362 6,725
Broadcasting 8,302 363K 3241 ! — —~ 3,341 3638 $.241
Industnial 7.059 7.061 6,662 701 706 708 6,358 6,355 5,954
Major Appliances 5620 5,289 4,721 - — — 5620 5280 4721
Materials 4929 3.5%9 2.751 33 40 32 4 89 5499 2,719
Power Systems 5129 4,805 4,995 128 126 125 5,001 4.679 4,870
Technical Products and
Services 4.545 44%) 3,670 194 161 537 4,351 4,270 8,538
Earmings of GEFS 927 788 252 — - - 927 788 552
All Other 819 S04 3176 — — 4 19 $94 5172
C srate ltems and
Iminations (1415) (1477 (1,287) (1,203) (1,318) (1,882) _ 212 (159) 45
Towl GE 42,650 40,292 40,516 — — — 42650 40292 40516
GEFS
Finanang 7,553 5827 $.507 —_ - — 7,338 5827 $,507
Insurance 2,710 247¢ 2217 —_ - - 2,710 2478 2217
Securiues Broker-Dealer 2,897 2316 2,491 — - - 2,897 2816 2,491
All Other 5 54 10 - - — 5 34 10
Towal GEFS 12,945 10,655 8,225 - S - 12945 10,655 8 225
Eliminatnons (1,021) (B58) (583) —_ — — (1,021) (B58) (588)
Consolidated revenues !54.574 !50.089 gSil.‘S& ! — ! - ! - £t4.574 gS0.0GQ gBiISB
Assets Preperty, plant and squipment
{including equipment leased to others)
(In millsons) At December 31 For the years ended December 31
Additions amortizaton
1989 1988 1987 1989 1985 198 1989 1988 1987
GE
Aerospace $ 3806 § 3838 § 3948 $ 173 §$ 208 § 178 $ 158 $ 170 $ 151
Aircraft Engines 5341 5164 5,066 341 234 242 278 251 242
Broadcasung 4428 4,104 5,948 81 147 115 79 70 =]
Industrial 4,016 3,720 4,041 354 301 274 248 249 815
Major Appliances 2,825 2,284 1,529 149 215 1i8 112 105 93
Matenals 8,023 7.130 3,901 722 757 378 519 252 202
Power Systems 9634 2,531 3,266 138 127 118 136 138 162
Technical Products and
Services 2,772 3,188 3,873 219 208 235 154 168 170
Investment in GEFS 6,069 4819 8,980 — —-— - — = <
All Other 951 1,122 2.04¢. 8 5 72 - 17 62
Cmnaions ™
imi ns 3,272 3,379 2,707 71 9] 458 50 102 83
Total GE 44,107 4] 283 88,300 2,251 2,288 1,778 1,524 1,522 1,544
GEFS
Finanang 54,056 44 874 34,168 3,174 1,738 508 679 695 325
Insurance 9,663 8,025 6,577 17 26 . B 6 )
Secuniues Broker-Dealer 27,118 21,891 20,041 33 19 60 32 32 26
All Other 31 155 625 33 14 1% 13 11 12
Total GEFS 90,928 74,945 61,406 3,257 1,797 579 732 744 369
Elimunavons (6,691)  (5363) (4,299 —_ — — — e i
Consolidated otals $128344 $110865 $45414 $5508 $4085 $2.357 $2.256 wﬂ $1.918
. === _== = e ———d ——————3 === ===




Revenues include income from all sl s: e for
GE, bath sales ~f products and services 1o customers and
“other income” ; for GEFS, “earned income” as described in
note 1. In general, it is GE policy 1o price sales from one
Company component t ) another as nearly as pracucal to
equivalent commeraal selling prices. About one-sixth of
GE s consolidated revenues are from agencies of the US,
goverrunent, GE's largest single customer. Most of these
were for aerospace and aircraft engine products and
services.

Operating profit by industry segment is on page 35
of this report.

A description of each of General Electric Company and
consolidated affiliates’ industry segments follows.

® Aerospace products and services encompass electron-
ics, avionic systerns, military vehicle equipment, automated

test systems, computer software, armament systems. mis-
sile system components, simulation systems, spacecraft,
communication systems, radar, sonar and system. integra-
ton. Most acrospace sales are to agenaies of the US. gov-
emment, principally the Department of Defense and t'y
National Aeronautics and Space Administration.

® Aircraft Engines and replacement parts are manufac-
tured and sold by GE for use in commeraal ana military
aircraft, in naval ships and as industrial power sources.
GE's military engines are used in a wide vanety of aircraft
that includes fighters, bornbers, tankers and helicopters.
GE's large CFM56 an . CF6 engines power all categories of
commeraial aircraft: shortvmedium, intermediate and
long-range. Applications for GF's CFM56 engine, pro-
duced jointly by GE and SNECMA of France, include:
Boeng's 737-300/-400/-500 series; Airbus Industrie’s
A320, A321 and A340 series; and military aircraft such as
the KC-135, E/KE-3 and E-6. The CFM56-3-powered 737
has become the fastest selling aircraft/engine combinaton
in . "uneraal aviation history. GE's CF6 family of engines
powers intermediate and long-range aircraft such as
Boeing’s 747 and 767 senes, Airbus Industrie’s A300,
AS10 and A330 senies, and McDonnell Douglas' DC-10
and MD-11 series. GE also produces jet engines for execu-
uve arcraft and regional commuter airlines.

® Broadcasting co. s primanily of the National

Broadcasting Company (NBC), which is the current leader
in network television. NBC' principal businesses are the
furnishing within the United States of network television
services to afhiliated television stations, the production of
live and recorded television programs, and the operation,
under licenses from the Federal Communicauons Com-
mission (FCC), of seven VHEF television broadcasung
statons The NBC Television Network is one of three
competing major national commercial broadcast television
networks and serves more than 200 regularly afhliated sta-
tons within the United States. The television statons NBC
owns and operates are located in Chic go, Cleveland, Den-
ver, Los Angeles, Miami, New York and Washington, D.C.
broadcasting op.rauons are subject 1 FCO regulation and

<.uon hcensing. NBC is currently expanding its opera-
tions, including investment and progr amming activities in
cable television.

® Indust=ia! encompasses factor  automation products,

motors, electrical equipment for ‘adustrial and commeraal
construction, GE Supply Corr pany, transportation systems
and Lighting products. Co<iomers for many of these prod-
ucts and services inCede electncal distnbutors, original
equipment manufacturers and industrial end vsers,
Motors and motor-related products serve the appliance,
commercal, industrial, heaung, air conditioning and auto-
motive markets. Motor products are used within GE and
also are sold externally. Electrical distribution and control
equipment, for whica European operations were
expanded with a new jeint verure in 1989, is sold for
installation in commercial, industrial and residential facli-
ties. Factory automation products cover a oroad range of
electrical and electronic products, including drive systems,
with emphasis on manufacturing and advanced engineer-
ing automation applications. GE Supply operates a nation-
wide network of electrical supply houses. Transportation
systems include diesel-electric and electric locomotves,
transit propulsion equipment, motorized wheels for ofl-
highway vehicles, such as those used in mining operations,
and driling devices. Locomotives are sold principally to
domestic and foreign railroads, while markets for other
products include state and urban transit authoriues and
industrial users. Lighting products include a wide vanety
of lamps — incandescent, fluorescent, high intensity dis-
charge, halogen and specialty — as well as wiring devices
and yuartz products. Markets and customers are prina-
pally in the United States, although toreign markets are
becoming increasingly imponant. Markets are extremely
varied, ranging from household consumers to commercial
and industrial end users and original cquipiicnt manufac-
turers, Until the fourth quarter of 1988, the Industnal seg-
ment also included semiconductor operations that have
since been sold.
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8 Meive daiBamees includes kite 2 and laundry equip-
ment such as refrigerators, ranges, microwave ovens,
Feezers. dishwashers, cdlothes washers and dryers, and
roum arr condinoners. These are sold under Ci, Hotpoint
and Monogram brands and, increasingly, under private
brands for retailers. Distribution of appliances using the
RCA brand began in 198% GE microwave ovens and room
air condinoners are mainly sourced from foreign supplhiers
while investment in Company-owned domesuc facliues is
focused on redrigerators, dishwashers, ranges and home
laundry equipment. Acquisiuon of Roper Corporation in
1988 added to GE's productive capacity and broadened its
product ofienngs, including gas ranges. A large poruon of
major apphance sales is (¢ 2 vanety or retail outlets with a
significant poruon of sales of certain products such as
laundry equipment and refrigerators being for replace-
ment of older products. The other principal market con-
sists of residenual building contractors who install major
appliances in new dwellings. A navonwide service network
supports GE's appliance business. European market partic-
ipaten was expanded significantly in 1989 with the forma-
uon of a new joint venture.

® Materials includes high-performance engineered
plasiics used in applications such as substitutes for metal
and glass in automobiles and as housings for computers
and other business equipment; silicones; superabrasives
such as man-made diamonds; and laminates. Market
opportuniues for many of these products are created by
tuncuonal replacement that provides customers with an
improved matenal at lower cost. These materials are sold
10 a diverse customer base (mainly manufacturers) in the
United Stats and abroad. Acquisition of the chemicals
businesses of Borg-Wamer Corporation at the end of
1988’ third quanter provided GE with another product —
ABS resins, a family of thermoplastic resins used by cus-
tom molders and major oniginal equipment manufacturers
for use in a vanety of applications, including fabrication of
automotive parts, telecommunications equipment, com-
puter enclosures, major appliance parts and pipe. The
acquisition also added technical and manufacturing
strength and domestic and offshore marketing facilities
and expertise that complement GE's other plastics busi-
nesses. Materials also includes Ladd Petroleum Corpora-
tion, an oil and natural gas developer and supplier with
operations mainly in the United States.

® Power Systems serves worldwide utility, industrial and
governmental customers with products for the generation,
transmussion and distribution of electricity and with related
installation, engineering and repair services. GE has
remained the leader in most power systems products in the
face of a decline in domestic and foreign markets for a
number of years. Worldwide competition continues to be

- g
intense. During L there were tangible signs of market
improvement. GE management continues vigorous efforts
o improve costcompetitiveness and 1o adapt products and
marketng to the changing environment. Steam turbine-
generators are sold to the electnc uulity industry, to the
US Navy and, for cogenerauon, to private industrial cus-
tomers. Marine steam turbines and propulsion gears also
are sold 1o the US Navy. Gas turbines are used prinaipally
as packaged power plants for electr- utilines and for
industnal cogeneration and mecharical drive applications
Centrifugal compressors are sold for application in gas
reinjection, pipeline services and process applications such
as refineries and ammonia plants. Although there have
been no nuclear plant orders in the United States since the
mud- 1970s and international acuvity has been very low, GE
continues to invest in advanced technology development
and to focus its resources on refueling and serving its
installed boiling-water reactors. Power delivery products
include transformers, relays, electric load management sys-
tems, power conversion systems and meters, principally
for electric utilives. Installation, engineering and repair
services include management and technical expertise for
large projects, such as power plants; maintenance, inspec-
ton, repair and rebuilding of electrical apparatus pro-
duced by GE and others; on-site engineering and
upgrading of already installed products sold by GE and
others; and environmental systems for utilities.

® Technical Products and Services consists of technology
operations providing products, systems and services 1o a
vanety of customers. Businesses in this segment include
medical systems and services, communications and infor-
mation services, and certain other specialized services.
Medical systems include magnetic resonance (MR) scan-
ners, computed tomography (CT) scanners, x-ray, nuclear
imaging. ultrasound, and ~ther diagnostic equipment and
supporting services sold 1. domestic and foreign hospitals
and medical facilives. Acquisitions and joint ventures i
recent years have expanded GE's medical systems activites
in world markets. GE Americom, a leading domestic satel-
lite carmier, operates seven domestic satellites providing dis-
tribution services for cable television, broadcast television
and radio, and voice, video and wideband data services o
agencies of the federal government. Common carrier serv-
ices of Americom are subject to regulation by the FCC. (*s
of December 31, 1989. GE Americom was transterred to
GE Capital. GE Americom's operating results will be
included in GEFS beginning in 1990.) {nformation serv-
wes are provided both to internal and external customers
by GE Information Services, GE Consulung Services and
the GE Computer Service operation. These include



enhanced computer-based communic{ s services. such
as data network services, electronic messaging and elec-
tronic data interchange, which are offered to commercial
and industrial customers through a worldwide network;
application softwar- packages; custom system design and
programming services; and independent maintenance and
rentalleasing services for minicomputers and microcom-
puters, electronic test instruments and data communica-
uons equipment. A separate services component provides
a vanety of specialized services to government customers,
In December 1989, GE's mobile cornmunications business
was placed in a joint venture with F ncsson of Sweden.
This venture combines GE's mobik  radio manufacturing
and distribution strength in North Amenica with Encsson's
European market strength and position in digital cellular
technology.

® Earwings of and Investment in GEFS are shown on a
“one-line” basis in GE's segment data but are eliminated in
consolidation. A separate discission of GEFS segments
appears below.

® All Oxher for periods pric: 10 1965 consists mostly of
former consumer electronics operations (prinaipally video
and audio products, including operations acquired from
RCA in 1986) and results of miscellaneous other acuvities
no longer part of GE's business. Ongoing operations
mainly involve licensing use of GE know-how 1o others.

GEFS

The business of General Electric Finanaial Services, Inc.
(GEFS) consists of the ownership of three affiliates that,
together with their affiliates and other investments, const-
tute General Electric Company's principal financial serv-
wes activities. GEFS owns all of the common stock of
General Electric Capital Corporation (GECC) and of
Empiuyers Reinsurance Corporaton (ERC) and owns 80%
of Kidder, Peabody Group Inc. (the other 20% is held by
or on behalf of certain Kidder, Peabody officers).

For industry segment purposes, Financing consists solely
of acuvities of GE Capital; Insurance consists principally of
acuvities of ERC but also includes certain insurance enti-
ties owned by GE Capital; Securities Broker-Dealer con-
sists entirely of Kidder, Peabody's operations; and All
Orher 1s mainly GEFS’ corporate acuvities not identifiable
with specific industry segments.

Additonal information about each GEFS segment
follows.

® Financing activities of GE Capual include time sales,
revolving credit and inventory finanang for retail mer-
chants (major appliances, television sets, furniture and
other home furmishings, and personal computers); auto-
mobile leasing and automobile inventery financing: home
and recreation financing (principally ume sales and dealer
mventory financang of mobile homes); commeraal and
industrial loans and equipment sales financing provided
through leases, ume sales and loans; leasing services for
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third-party investors} _ | commercial and residential reak
estate financing. Acquisivon of Montgomery Ward & Co's
credit operations in Cid- 1988 gdded 1o GE Capital’s earn-
ing assets, parucularly in credit card operations, which
continue to expand. GE Capital also is an equity investor
in certain other service and financial services organizations
and participates in leveraged buyouts. Although leasing
has been a major factor in GE Capital’s growth over the
years, GE Capual has actvely changed its investment port-
folio 1o place greater emphasis on asset ownership, man-
agement and operation. Virtually all products inanced
by GE Capital are manufactured by companies other
than GE.

® Insurance consists mainly of ER(, a multiple-line
property and casualty reinsurer that writes all lines of rein-
surance other than ttle and annuities. ERC reinsures
property and casualty risks written by more than 1,000
domestic and foreign insurers and augments its foreign
business through subsidiaries located in the United King-
dom and Denmark. By way of other subsidianes, ERC
writes property and casualty reinsurance through brokers
and provides reinsurance brokerage services. ERC also
writes certain specialty lines of insurance on a direct basis,
principally excess workers' compensation for self-insurers,
libel and allied torts, and errors and omissions coverage for
insurance agents and brokers. It is licensed in all states of
the United States, the District of Columbia, certain prov-
inces of Canada and in other jurisdictions. ERC's business
1s generally subject to regulat.on by vanous insurance
regulatory agencies. Other insurance acuvities of GEFS
include GE Capital affiliates that provide financial guaran-
tee insurance on selected securities, private mongage
msurance, life reinsurance and, for GE Capital customers,
credit life and certain types of properny/casualty insurance.

® Securities Broker-Dealer represents Kidder, Peabody,
which is a major investment banking and securities Grm.
Principal businesses include securities underwriting; sales
and trading of equity and fixed income securities; financial
futures activiues; advisory services for mergers, acquisi-
tons and other corporate finance matters; merchant bank-
ing; research services; and asset management. These
services are provided in the United States and abroad 1o
domestic and foreign business entties, governments, gov-
ernment agencies, and individual and institutional inves-
tors. Kidder is a member of the pninapal domesuc
securities and commodities exchanges and is a priumary
dealer in US. government securities. Certain affiliates of
Kidder, Peabody are subject to the -ules and regulations of
various federal, state and industry regulatorv agencies that
apply to securities broker-dealers, including the US. Secu-
rities and Exchange Commission, US. Commodity Futures
Trading Commussion, New York Stock Exchange, Natonal
Association of Secunties Dealers and the Chicago Board
of Trade.
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hote 3 4 Geographic Seg  at information (consolidated) )
Revenues
(In milhons) For the vears ended December 31

Total revenues

Intersegment revenues External revenues

198y 198X 1987 1984 1 URK 1987 198G 1988 19K7
United States $48012  $45504  $45.160 $ 1,107 § 874 § Ol $47.805 $45490 $44.359
Other areas of the world 7458 5576 4 804 689 77 1,005 6,769 4.5% 8,799
Intercompany eiminations (1.796) (1.851) (1,896) (1.796) (1.B51) (1 896) - - -

" - L4 b d
Total 254.544 $50.089  $4% 158 ! - $ — ! — !54.5:4 !M»,(w !45.!.’)&
Operating profit Assets
For the vears ended December 31 At December 31
JUKy 1988 1987 1984 1988 1987
United States $ 6070 § 4941 § 3715 $117,108 $102.327 $84480
Onher areas of the world 974 1,009 725 11,846 K641 6,027
Intercompany eliminauons (X) (10) 10 (11} (103) (93)
Total $ 703 $ 5940 § 4450 2128.344 $110,865 g‘.‘f).d 14

US revenues include GE exports to external customers,
and rovalty and licensing income from foreign sources.

Note 35 Quarterly information (unsudited)

Exports to external customers by major areas of the
world are shown on page 37,

R R I CWE First quaner Second quarter Thard quarter Fourth quarter
per-share amounts in dollars) 1989 1985 1989 1988 1989 1988 1984 1988
Consolidatad operations
Net earnings $ B840 § 795 $ 972 § 835 $ 45 §$ 815 $1.173 $1.011
Net earnings per share 0.94 0.80 108 093 1.04 0.90 1.30 112
Dividends declared per share 041 0.35 041 0.85 041 0.85 047 041
Common stack market price
High 49 47 56's 4% 50% 4 4% 46
Low 3% 40 “h S8 51% %9 52% 4%
Selected data
CE
Sales of products and services 8868 7975 10,188 9,245 9616 9300 12,847 12,268
. taxs profit from sales 2,392 1978 2989 2,865 2499 2349 5,407 3270
Revenues from operatons 2824 2411 3,261 2465 3,230 2717 3,630 3,062
Operating profit 259 246 231 223 841 230 807 828

For GE, gross pro 1 from sales is sales of goods and
services less cost of goods and services sold. These costs of
sales accounted for a relatively smaller proporuon of GE
operating costs in 1989 than in 1988, reflecung differences
between the penods from acquisitions and dispositions as
well as ongoing refinements among broad cost classifica-
tons. For GEFS, operaung profit is as presented on
page 35 of this report.

Second-, third- and fourth-quarter 1988 net earnings
included negative effects ($23 milhion — 2 cents per share,
$43 million — 5 cents per share and $231 mitlion — 26
cents per share, respectively) of expenses and accruals for
abnormally high warranty costs for certain refrigerator
COMPressors.
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Corporate Information <

Corporsts Headquarters
CGeneral Electnc Company
418¢ ®aston Turnpike
Fairfield, Conn. 06431
(208) 873-2211

Annual Meeting

The 1990 Annual Meeting of the General Electric
Company will be hold on Wednesday, April 25, at the
Warner Theatre in Erie, Pa.

Share Owner inquiries

ghare owner matters, contact:
GE Securities Ownership Services, PO. Box 120065,
Standord, Conn. 06912. Telephone: (208) 326-4040.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Share owners who have one or more shares of GE stock
in their names are eligible 1o invest cash up to
$10,000 per month and/or reinvest their dividends in the
GE Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan,
For an authorization forr - and prospectus, write (0:
Reinvestment Plan Services, PO. Box 120068, Stamford,
Conn. 06912,

Principal Transfer Agent and Registrar

To transfer securities, contact: The Bank of New York,
Receive 7. Deliver Department, Church Street Station,
PO. Box 11002, New York, N.Y. 10249. Telephone:
(800) 524-4458.

Stock Exchange information
In the United States, GE common stock is listed on the
New York Stock Exchange (its principal market) and on
the Boston Scock Exchange. GE common stock also is
listed on certain foreign exchanges, including The Stock
Exchange, London and the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

As of December 9, 1989, there were about 515,000
share owners of record.

™
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Form 10-K and Other Reports
The financial information in this report, in the opinion of
management, substantially conforms with or exceeds the
information required in the “10-K Report” to be submitted
{0 the Securities and Exchange Commission at the end of
March. Certain supplemental information is in that report,
however, and copies without exhibits will be available,
without charge, from: Corporate Investor Communica-
tions, General Electric Company, Fairfield, Conn. 06451

Copies of the General Electric Pension Plan, the Sum-
mary Annual Report for GE employee benefit plans sub-
ject 1o the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, and other GE employee benefit plan documents and
information are available by writing to Corporate Investor
Communications and specifying the information desired.

GE Financial Services has a separate Annual Report,
and both it and GE Capital Corporation file Form 10-K
Reports with the Secuntes and Exchange Commussion.
Copies of these reports may be obtained from: General
Electric Financial Services, Inc., PO. Box 8300, Stamford,
Conn. 06927.

The Annual Reports of the General Electric Foundatons
also may be obtained by contacung their offices at 3135
taston Turnpike, Fairfield, Conn. 06431

Product information

For information about GE consumer producis and serv-
wes. call The GE Answer Center® at (800) 626-2000. For
information about GE technical, commercial and indus-
trial products and services, ca'l the GE Business Informa-
ton Center at (518) 438-6500. For information about the
varied financial products and services offered by \ £ Capi-
tal Corporation, call (800) 243-2222.

© 1990 Generai Elecunic Company Printed in US.A.

New : Unless otherwise indiicated by the context, the terms “GE."

“Company” are on the basis of con-

described on pege 46. STNIRAL ® CEand

RCA are registered

#% and NBC are registered trademarks

ing Company, Inc.; ® and ™ indicate
service marks,
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Exhibit | to Parent Company
Guarantee of Availability
of Funds for Decommission-
ing Costs -~ General
Electric Company.
v o

.Mkwdb#fﬁh&qnhwwﬂﬂl

y,l\ Vl.'n\’_ o

i » 3t ;r Q '.,' 5 \ L4 ”
ik b b ‘“ " "' - R e Yuke L i vodt | . e 4
y & bl‘v r . -
t R4 v o SRRl Tl e 3 s
Rage A 3% § G, R0 e
N m‘ltﬁ‘ .w\.w‘,w ‘ el ] .
TPARES - s o PRl
- e 1,' sl o . E 2 i
; 'Ms . "{;'.' A e gy iy S
b e A rd‘,‘,‘."« s & J
" tH . v, el g -
e i A e iy . 3\-'-- ‘ ¥ “Q; e
bois b Q. N 3 HAVR 5 Y v
i e — - > - X L. “
e .
- o
R Tha) .
b FEIVTAN ESaa s dgeetien L PR
of "}
e ¥
! -
i v
J el
. | 3
! v ~o(a, "
k! A oS E .
" 3 s r . B
oy 8
¢ v
) ¢ £ w
i
| -
T P
3 PO ' -

£ APB-9G(5/88)







§ {
TABLE OF CONTENTS
CERTIFICATE OF |N(ZORI‘0RA’I'|UN ‘
Page :
RN TR Gorion 1. Name eopaseeerees 1 3 l
B S SECTION 2. Purposes .- "’ e en g Ry VAT 3
A . SECTION 3. Authorized Shares, ... caxesrrre st 4 b
SECTION 4. Office.... " e TP TR LA b L- e
sgcTion 5. QS . ¢3 an s R AL RIS ST H o
SECTION E Theatarl savicesasaraingrenex PEoe 5 ;
TEUTION 7. Agent for PrOOBER 2.0 ot s 4 vapanarsadsasists 5 *
BY-LAWS
ARTICLE W Paeep e L LR R P 6
ARTICLE g S A A i gl o8 6
L Lo arnicie 1L Counmittees of DIFECIOTE. v reestaet 7t 100 7 i
W s IV, Officers oo oeveeaiss e LT 7
; ARTICLE v. Removai of Officers and Employecs . .ccoe0es 9 ‘
ArTicLe VL hada s s kg EREIT AR 9 m
articLe  VIL Meetings of Sharehol@ers. . «ssasesrsr sttt 10 . .
Articre VL Saack and Transfer oo cnrnar sttt 10 ‘
Aznicle  IN Examination of POOKE, « 7 vu s saxrre st 11
PPN ARTICLE X Engineering Decisions and Activities ... .xv oo 11
T frestph ARTICLE XL IndemPAfICAtIoN .« «orusrsisrese ittt 11
AgTicLE  XIL Amendments of Bydaws .. oooerer 12 '
ArTICLE XTIL Emergency O T R 12 Lo oot il
( i y v "‘.f‘.‘



shares whi

nsisting
o, 8 4 Nl

| Y
100,000
er share; an |

Sovw PR F A Mad &3, $
0O 6381
i (
- .,,“\)-\\':N"‘“t‘”'7"“‘!\v WK

5 2

number «

fix the designat
i the shares
Board with respect t

determination




CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

GINERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY ¢

J-,.FulleAr~ acyvi)
tangible and intar

fl, nat

1 numbe
1,000,000 share

OO0 KN







S ARTICLE1 R e
OFFICE it R aeat

The office ou this Company shall be in the City of Schenectady, ¢

County of Schenectady, State of New York.

ARTICLE Il

DIRECTORS

A, The stock, property and affairs of this Company shall be
managed by a Board of Directors consisting of not less than fifteen
nor more than twenty-one members. The number of Directors shall

‘ be such number, within the aforesaid minimum and maximum
m limits, as shallbe determined by vote of 8 majority of the entire Board
of Directors, except as the aumber of Directors for any year shall be
tixed by the shareholders at any annual statutory me>ting by a m
majority vote of the outstanding shares entitled to vote thereon. The 0
Directors shall be clected each year, at the annual statutory meeting ‘
of the shareholders, to ho'd office until the next annual statutory ‘
meeting, and until their successors have been elected and have E
qualified. One-third of the number of Directors constituting the
entire Board, as that number shall be determined from time 1o time,
B i L o Thade S shall be a quorum for the transaction of business.
B. Meetings of Directors
1. The Board of Directors may fix the time or times and the place § vass Fpvanaet gl
or places of regular and special meetings of the Board. Special
meetings of the Directors also may be held atany time by order 1
of the Chairman of the Board, or in the absence of the Chair- ‘
man of the Board, by order of the President, if then a separate
officer, or upon the written direction of two of the Directors.
9. Notice of each special meeting shall be mailed or telegraphed 1o ‘
each Director at his residence or plac= of business at least two ;
davs before the meeting, and notice shall be deemed to be given
at the time of mailing or delivery 1o a telegraph office for
transmission, but the said two days' notice need not be given to
any Director who submits a signed waiver of notice. whether
before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without

e
\

PN——
« As last amended and restated by Board of Directors on Seprember 10, 1976, except for
Article X1 which was amended by shareholders on April 22, 1987
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ARTICLE VII

MEETINGS OF sSHAREHOLDERS

Meetings of shareholders may be held at such time and in such place
within or without the State of New York as the Board of Directors may
determine, and the annual statutory meeting required by Section 602(b)
of the New York Business Corporation Law shall be held ¢ the fourth
Wednesday in Apr il of ~ach vear, or as the Board of Directors may from
tume 10 nme 1""”?\\5\ ("“'."”\IIH

Special meetings of the sharcholders may be called by the Board, or

upon the written request therefor of shareholders holding torty per

cent of the then issued stock of the Company, filed with the Secretary
'he Board of Directors may prescribe an order G business for
meetings of shareholders. The Chairman of the Boa-d, or in his
absence, the President, if then a separate offices shall preside at
meetings of the shareholders; provided, however, that the Board of
Directors may for any meeting of sharcholders designate another

otficer or officers 1o pres he
ARTICLE VIl

STOCK AND TRANSFER

A. Certificates of stock, signed by the Chairman of the Board, or a
Vice Chairman, or the President, if then a separate ofticer, or a Vice
ident and the Secretary or Treasures 1all be 1ssued 1o the share
LU mavi
who i
pla;ed upon a certtfica
certificate s 1ssued, such ceruty issued by the Company with
the same eftect as if that otlice f n¢ ASe( y e such at the date
LS 155U
B. The stock ¢ ! only upon the books of the Cor
pany, by the h e1 |, or by properly authenticated
power of attorn_y
C. The Boasd of Directors or Executive Committee may appoint
suitable agents ir. Jhe City of New York and elsewhere, to facilitat
transfers by shareholders under such regulations as the Board may
from time t) time prescribe I'he transfer books may b. closed by the
Joard for such periods as may be deemed advisable tor dividend or
other pusposes
D. The Roard of Directors or Executive Committee may appoint any
Bank or Tiust Company in the City of New York or elsewhere, to act as
registrar of transfers of stock until otherwise ordered by the Board of
Directors. After the appointment of any such registrar of transters, n¢
certificate thereafter issued for stock shall be binding upon the Com
pany, or have any validity, unless countersigned by any such registrar ol
transfers, or by a successor of any such registrar appointed by the Board

of Directors
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E. The Board of Directors may make such other and turther regula:
tions, with re‘erence 1o the stock and its transier, as 1o them mey seem
advisable from time to time.

F. The Board of Directors may call & meeting or meetings of share:
holders for the purpose of authorizing an increase of the stock of this
Company, at suchi time or ti'nes as to the Board may seem advisable.

ARTICLE IX

EXAMINATION OF BOOKS

The Board of Divectors may, by resolution, make regulations respect.
ing the examination of the books oi the Company by shareholders,

ARTICLEX

ENGINEERING DECISIONS AND ACTIVITIES

All engineering decis’ons m. - in a particular state pertaining to any
project o engineering activities onducted by the Comouny in such
state where so required by law, or v here the Chief Executive Otficer so
directz, shali be made (a) by the employee of the Company who holds a
certificate of registration as an engineer in such state and who b been
specified by the Chief Executive Officer or the person designated by the
Chief Executive Ofticer to m* = such specification, as the engiaeer in
responsible charge of such | ect or enginecring acrivities, or (b) by
other responsible engineers under his direction or supervision.

ARTICLE XI
INDEMNIFICATION

A. The Company shall, o the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law as the same exists or mav hereafier be in effect, indemaify any
person who is or was or has agreed o become a divecior or officer of the
Company and who is or was made or threatened (o be made a party tom
is involved in any threatened, pending or completed action, suit o
proceeding. whether civil, criminal. administrative or investigative,
including an action by w in the right of the Company to procure a
judgment in its favor and an action by or in the right of any other
corporation of any type cr kind, domestic or foreign. or any pariner-
ship, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise,
which such person is serving, has served or has agreed 1o serve in am
capacity at the request of the Coupany, by reasa of the fact that he or
she is or was or has agreed to become a dircctor or offiver o, the
Company, ot is or was serving or has agreea to serve such other
corporation, partrership, joint venture, trust, emplovee benefit plan or
other enterprise in any capacity, against judgments, fines, amounts paid
or to be paid in settlement, taxes or penalties, and rosis, charges and
expenses, iwluding attorney’s fees, incurred in connection with such
action or proceeding or any appeal thercin; provided, however, that no

L




Erl )

L

o
sipr e Vb aeri

indemnification shall be pr-wi(h-d (o any such person if a judgmeat oF
other final adjudication @ verse 10 the director F officer establishes
1 (i) his or her a¢ 1y were committed in bad faith or were the reswit of
ve and del berawe dishonesty and, in cither Cas, were material to the
_use of action $0 udjudiuled. or (il) he or she pcrmm\h pincd in fact
a financial profitof other advantage 1© which he or she was not legally
envitled. The penefits of this paragraph A shall extend 10 the heirs and
\egal repreoenmivn of any person entitled 1w (ndemnification under
this pon;ﬂph.

B, The Company may, o the exient authorized from (ime to time by
the Board of Directors, or by # committee comprised of members of the
Board of members of ran rent as the Board may designate for such
purpose, provide indemnification 10 employees oF agents of the Cory
pany who are not otficers oF divectors of the Company with such scope
and effect as determined by the Board, of such commitiee:

C.. The Company may indemnify any person 10 whom the Com any is

ermitted by applicable law (o provide indemnification o7 the advance:
ment of expenses. whether pursuant 1o rights granted pursuant 1% or

rovided by, the New York usiness Corporation Law or other rights
createn by (\Ha resolution of shurchn\dcn. (i) & resolution of directors,
or (il an agreement providing for such ‘mdcmniﬁuﬁm\. it being
expressly intended that (hese By-laws authorize the creation of other
rights in any such manner. The right to be indemnified and 1o the
reimbursement or advancement of expenses ipcurred in defending #
pmcccd'mg in advance of jts final disposition authorized by this Para
guph C shall not be exclusive of any ather right which any person may
have or hereafier acquirsd ander any statute, provision of the Certificate
of Incorparation. Pr-laws, agreement, vote of shareholders OF disinter:
ested directors of aiherwise.

. The right 10 \ndemnification conferred by p.oagraph A shall, and
any indemnificanon extended under pavagraph Bor Paragraph (. man
be retroactive 10 events occurting prior o (he adoprion of this Article
X1, to the fullest ex.ent pcrm'med by applicable law.

£ This Article X1 may be amended, modified or rcpcu\cd either by
action of the Board f Directors of the Company or by the voie of the
sharciders.

ARTICLE xu

AMEN NMENTS OF BY-LAWS

These Bylaws may be altered, & nded or rcpu‘.ed. at any time, in
the manner prm"\dcd in the Certitwcate of Incorporation of this Com-

pany.
ARTICLEY n

EMERGENL ¥ BYA AW
A, Thie @ ergency By-law shall becomt effeciive if the Defense
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Council of New York, as constituted under the New York State Defense
Emergency Act now in effect or as it may hereafter be amended from
time to time, shall order the effectiveness of emergency By-laws of New
York Corporations and shall cease 10 be effeciive when the Council shall
so declare. This Emergency Bydaw may also become effective in the
manner outlined in Section E of this Article.

B.In the event this Emergency Bydaw shall become effective, the
business of the Company shall continue 10 be managed by those
members of the Board of Directors in offics at the time the emergency
arises who are available 10 act during the emergency. If less than three
such Directors are available o act, additicnal Directors, in whatever
number is necessary to constitute a Boar u of three Directors, shall be
selected automatically from the first available officers or employees in
the order provided in the emergency succession list established by the
Board of Directors and in effect at the time an emergency arises,

C. For the purposes of Sections B and 1(3) of this Article, a Director
shall be deemed unavailable to act if he shall fail to attend a Directors
meeting called in the manner provided in Section D(") of this Article.
This section, however, shall not affect in any way the right of a Director
in office at the time an emergency arises to continue as a Director.

D. The Board of Directors shall be governed by the following basic
procedures and shall have the following specific powers in addition 1o
all other powers which it would otherwise have.

I Meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by amy
Director, or by the first available officer or employee in the
order provided in the emergency succession list referred 1o in
Section B of this Article, by mailing to all Directors written
notice thereof at their residence or place of business at least two
days before the meeting and by using other reasonably available
means of communication in an effort 1o contact each Director.

2 Three Directors shall constitute a quorum which may in all

cases act by majority vote,

If the number ¢f Directors who are available 1o act shall dirop

below three, additional Divectors, in whatever number is neces-

sary to constitute a Board of three Directors, shall be seiecied
automatically from the first available officers or emplovees in

the order provided in the emergency succession list reterred 10

in Section B of this Article.

1 Additional Directors, beyond the minimum number of three
Directors, bit not more than three additional Direciors, vaay be
clected from any officers or employees on the emergency
succession list referred o in Section B of this Art.cle.

5. Any Director, other than a Director in office at the time an

emergency arises, may be removed by a majority vote.

Ti:e Board of Directors may establish any additional proce:

-

6.

dures and may amend any of the provisions of this Article
concerning the interim management of the affairs of the Com-
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pany in an emergency it it considers it 1o be in the best interests
of the Company to do so, except that it may not ¢ hange Sections
C or DB) of this Article in any manner which excludes from
participation any person who was a Director in office at the tim ¢
AN CMETRENCY arises.

To the extent that it considers it practical o do so, the Roard of
Directors shall manage the business of the Company during an
emergency in a manner which is consistent with the Certificate
of Incorporation and By-laws, 1tis recognized, however, that in
an emergency it may not always be practical to act in this
manner and this Emergency By-law is intenaed to and hereby
empowers the Board of Directors with the maximum authority
possible under the New York State Defense Emergency Act, and
all other applicable law, to conduct the interim management of
the affairs of the Company in an emergency in what it considers
to be in the best interests of the Company.

E. If an obvious defense emergency exists because of an enemy attack
and, if by 1eason of the emergency, the Defense Council of New York is
itself unable 10 order the effectveness of emergency by-laws as contem:
plated by Section A of this Article, then:

2

A quorum of the Board of Directors pursuant to Article 11 of
these By-laws may order the effectiveness of this Emergency By-
law or

If a quorum of the Board of Directors pursuant to Article 11 of
these By-laws is not present at the first Board of Directors
meeting called, in the manner provided in Section D("* of this
Article, after an emergency arises, then the provisions of this
Emergency Bylaw shall automatically become effective and
shall remain in effe ot until it is practical for a normally consti-
tuted Board of Directors to resume management of the business
of the Company
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